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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Solar Magic
Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income),the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the fnancial
statemnents, including a summary of matenal accounting policies and other
cxplanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the * Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, {“Ind AB" and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing {*SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibiliies under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Fesponsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia ("ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the [CAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Financial Statements,




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. “The
other information comprises the information inchided in the Board’s Repsort
including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the Finan cial
Statements and our auditor's report thereon. The above-referred informetion iz
expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Cur cpinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other informat-on
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing se, consider whether the ather
information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or <ur
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears t> be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this ether information, we ar¢ required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(3) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles genersally accepted in
India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a trye
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
BITOT.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors is
reaponsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also respensible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Finarsial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether duwe to
fraud or error, andto issue an auditor's report that includes our opimion.
Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matesrial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they ceuld
reazonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taker on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an gudit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgmaent
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Ildentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Finameial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform =awidit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain andit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of net
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstan ces,
Undler section 143(3](1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of aeccounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

= Conchide on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether &
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our aunditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cyr
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatemnents in the Financial Statements that,

A o, Individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a



reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be mfluenceed.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in li] planning the
scope of our audit work andin evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
cvaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statemerits,

We communicate with those charged with povernance regarding, among ot her
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant awsdit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that
we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we hoave
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and ather matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
salepguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key auadit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremiely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonahly
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication .

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best ofour knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company a0 far &s it appears from our examination of those
books.,

c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inchiding Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d}) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) Omnthe basis of the writien representations received from the directors
as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors iz disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements of the Company and the operating
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effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexsre
A", Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls w—ith
reference to Financial Statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
cxplanations given to us, remuneration (sitting fees) is paid by the
Company to its director during the year, Further the Company is a private
limited Company. Accordingly, the provisions of section 197 of the Axt
are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion &nd to the best of cur information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1
1.

il

The Company does not have pending litigation as at 31 March
2025.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

There were no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investar
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the saggregate] have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or enfity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries®),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(*Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries;

(b} The Manapement has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds [which are material either
individually or in the aggregate] have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or en behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, security or



the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considemed
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing las
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11lje}, as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any matemial
misstatement.

v. Dividend:

{2} The Company has not declared any dividend during the financial
year covered by audit and in the previous year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the
Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books
of account for the financial vear ended March 31, 2025 which has a
feature of recording audit trail |edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorcled
in the softwares. Further, during the course of our andit we did mot
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampexed
with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per
the statutory requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ({the "Orcler”)
1ssued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we
give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

For Desal Saksena & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration mumber: 102358W
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Alok K. Saksena (.IJ I s
Partner Wekn .
Membership number: 35170 %ﬁﬁ__bﬁaﬁ
Mumbai, Date: 13t May 2025 2

UDIN: 25035170BMHYEX4065
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ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Refersed te in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of
SOLAR MAGIC FRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements of Solar Magic Private Limited [the *Company”)
as of March 31,2025 in conjunctionwith our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements based on the internal control over financial reporting critetia
established by the Company considering the essentizl components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the *ICAF). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adegquate
internal financial controls that wers operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frands and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable fnancial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Uur respansibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements based on our
aldit. We conducted our andit in accordance with the Guidanee Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note®) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable ta
an audit of internal financial controls with reference tn Financial
Statements. Those Standards and the Guidanee Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the sudit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materdal
respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness, Our aundit of
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financlal controls with
referenice to Financial Statements, assessing the tisk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the aunditor's judgement, incliding the
assessment of the risks of materal misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belive that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide & basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Stotcmonts.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

A company’s intermal fnancial control with reference to Financial
Statements iz a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financisl reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and falrly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and [3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or dispesition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference
to Financial Stetements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controle over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
manzgement override of controls, material misstatements die ta o
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projectione of any
evaluation of the intemnal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements to future perinds are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to Financial Statements may become
inadequate becanse of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriarate.



Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the criteria for internal financial contral with refersnce to
Financial Statements established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidanee Moke on

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAL

For Desai Saksona & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 1023538W

G

Alok K. Saksena

Partner

Membership number: 35170
Mumbai, Date: 13t May 2025
UDIN: 250351 70BMHYBX4065




ANNEXURE ‘B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to In paragraph 2 under *Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of
SOLAR MAGIC FRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations
provided to us by the Company and the books of acesunt and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:
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In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets:

(@) [A) The Company has maintained proper records showlng fiull
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property; plant and equipment,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

(t) The Company has a program of physical verification of
property, plant and equipment so to cover all the assets every
year which, in our opinion, is reasunable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the program, certain property, plant and equipment were due
for verification during the year and were physically verified
by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and
lease agreement jor land on which building is constructed
provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-
conatructed buildings disclosed in the financial statements
included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(&) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets during the year.

(e} MNo proceedings have been iniHated during the year or are
pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for
holding any benami property under the BenamiTransactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} and rules made
thercunder.

{a) The inventories have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage and the frequency of such verification is
reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between
the physical stocks and the book records were not material,

(b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of ¥ 5 crore, In aggregate, at any points of time during
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the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
securlty of current assets and hence reporting under clause
3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made investments in companies, firms,
Limited Liahility Partnerships, and granted unsecured loans to
other parties, during the year, Hence, reporting under clause 3 (iij)
(a) () (Al (B} e} to {f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured or
provided any guarantees or security to parties covered under
section 185 of the Act. The Company has not granted loans, no
investment has been made, no guarantee and security is given to
parties covered section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3
(] of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are

deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Cirder is not applicable.

The maintenanece of cost records has not been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.,

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinien, the Company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and
Services tax, Provident Fund, Income Tax, Cess and other

material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate
suthorities,

There wers no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Income Tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,

2035 for a peried of more than six months from the date they
became payahble.

(b} There are no material statutory dues which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute,

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during

the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

(a} The Company has not defaulied in the repayment of loans or
borrowings o any lender.
(b} The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any

bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year
and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of
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the year and hence, reporting under clause 3lix)(c) of the Order
is not applicable.

{d) There are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the
year. The Company has taken short loan during the year. On
an overall examination of the financial swatements of the
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,

not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

{8fiThe Company do not have any subsidiary, associate or joint

venture and hence reporting on clause 3ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable.

(fy The Company do not have any subsidiary, associate or joint
venture and hence reporting em clause 3{ix)(f) of the Order i=s
not applicable.

{a) The Company is a private limited company. Hence question of
any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) do not arises and hence reporting
under clause 3(x}(a} of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertibie
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Crder is not applicable.

[a}) No fraud by the Company and no material frand on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the vear and up to the
date of this report.

(c) The Company is private limited Company. The Company has
not accepted public deposits and the borrowings from the
Banks is less than Rs.50 Crores and hence reporting under
clause 3 [xi) (¢} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under
clavse |xu) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177
arid 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable
transactions with the related parties and the detzils of related
party transactions hawve been disclosed in the Financial
Statemenis as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The provisions of the section 138 are not applicable to the
Company and hence reporting under clause 3{xiv) (a) & (b) of the
Order is not epplicable.

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence provigions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
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{a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reaerve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvij{a), (b) and ic) of the Order
is not applicable.

{b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within
the Group (as definedin the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank] Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3ixvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial
year covered by our audit and the immedlately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory suditors of the
Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial labilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all Habilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.,

The provisions of section 135 are not applicatle to the Campany.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) {a] & (b} of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

For Dezai Saksena & Associates
Chartered Accountants

's registration number: 102358W
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SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025
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S0 GIC PRIVAT 1]

EALANCE SHEET AS AT MAR 31, 2025
T ;EE“I.IIH'HHR Lq.hrgl
Particulars Pdotesy ik A s
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Man-Current Asseis
la} Properiy, Plant and Equipment iq 18.12 44.35
| Financiy Assets
1) Trade Receivable B 11.86 62T
i} Coher Hnandal Assets fi 1.0 150
|£] Ctbsér Mon-Currant Assats | 14.54 .50
{d) Deforned Tar Asset s =
6741 60.52
Cisrrant mpswts
ial Inventadee & 353,44 442,59
@} Fnancial Anets
il Tracke: Racaivakie: 7 231.45 137.06
i) Cesh pmd Cash Egubvalents & a.53 4614
[id) Crther Fisaniclal Asgets 5 H.42 12,70
(e} Dther Current Assats L] 5.33 1.9
643,17 522,70 |
—— ]
Total Asapis T15.60 SE3.2}
T e
FOUITY AMD LIABILITIES
Equipy
i8] Equity Skare capital 11 545,00 545,00
i Ohr Eguinty iz {180,501 AR1EBTY
36410 28,13
Liakbdlities
P Currast LBty
i) Francial LizbBnees
I} Borr owings 13 3156 2125, G
56 IZ5.00
Cusrent Lizbilities
[a} Financial Liagilives
{1} Trade Payabies 113
Fefa | eutstanding dues of craditans other
than micro entergeives and small enserprisas AL G
() Daber Eingncial Liabilites 14 LT .1 5.23
b Ertheer Current Lia bilities £7 376 066
e} Bnrrwings 13 18k58 -
{df Prewisans 15 =08 7.5E
153 130,05 |
120,53 13008
Tetad Equity and Uakdikies 1560 SEL¥1
Significant Ascaunting Polisies and Notes on Acoounts form an 1 1o 44
intagral part of the fimancial seatameras
As it Gur regart of even date spiachar
Fer DESAI SANSENS. B ASSOCLATES For and an behalf of the Boasd &l Directors
Chartered Aconuntants
Inm Ragitralion Number VOZIEEW
oo
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Alok K Sakepny fihatychandra Bakshi Karoh Minger
Partner [Wrwchar
Membership No. 035170 IBOEE] {DIN : OBTEEESE)

Place : Murmbai
Drate - 13/052075

Flace : Mumkal
Oate : 1370572025




SOLAR RIVATE D

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

{Amesrt in INR Rakhs)

Pastivitara Forshe Yearended | For the Year eraded
Fsrch 51, 2025 March 31, 2024
CASH FLOWS FROS OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profityf|Lass) before incoms tar ; 12XH3: =28.38
HAdfmtments far -

Interess and irance charges 3456 25,72

Deprechtios and amortisation expense & Other adjusiemee 20000 S0

Guarantes commisskon eapanse 134

LAsL perr Provisian sritten Back 14% 3013
Change in operating assets and liabilithes:

lveertoring 170 As) (26.57)

Trade receivables oAz (83.58)

Trade payakles JLrs 063

Frascial aEuets 4TE {7.4R]

Cthar gpyety {&A5]) 158

Franoial fiabfie I'.'IB-E- 1E

Current inhisies 2308 {0.43)
Canh gamerabed from operatiees G219 {1.78)
Less: inonme Eaval peid 51 B33
Met cash inflrw fram cperating actities B1.b8 [ 2:09)
CASH FLOWS FROOMA INUVESTRNG ACTIVITIES:

Payrments for perchase of property, plant and equipmant |B.B7) {1.13)
m:mﬂnnnmwulh [LET} .
CASH FLOWS FROM FISARCING AVCTIVITIES:

Repayment of horrawings (408 44 (332.00)

Proceadh fram bonnowings ra L ] SEZ.00

Precdadh from shart tesm bomrowing (Ret 13355 .

Bepayment of Leass |labdities - {o.71)

Interast ired Mriance charges pakd 3456 (25.72]

| Net cash inflaw [sitlow] from financing activitios {94.42) 2557
Het Intredsr (deomase) in cash and cash equivaiensy [A6.41) 23
Caiky and Cash Equivalents a4 the beginning of the fnsscis vea ag.1a. 2173

| Caifand Cash Bqulvilents at end af the yesr 0,50 5,14
Rezancillatian of cash and eash squivalents as par the carh flow stalement;

Cash and cash aouivalents as par abeve compnisn of the Tellowing:

Balaroes with bands on curent acooums 910 45,11

Cizch on hand 0.1 1.
Balanies per statoment of cash fows 553 465.14

Moy

1. The abave caoh flow stabement has been prepaned urder the Tndivert Method' A itk ok in the Ind AS 7 oo 'Statement of Cash Flous!

2. Previcus vaari figures have baon rgrouped frearrsnged frecast whisreesr recessary 10 cardorm to thi pesr's classificatian.

Significant Ascounting Pofdes and Nees on Accdurts form an inegral part of

the fingeciyl statomant

Al par aur fepart of oven date sttached
For DESAL SAKSENA R ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accoiiniests

m Repistretion Number 1003580

p
Alak K Saksena

Partner
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Lo 44
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SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAR 31, 202 5

A Eguity Share Capltal

— e

Particulars Balance at the | Changes in Equity Balance at the
Beginning of the |share capital during| end of the period
periad the year
March 31, 2024
HWumbiers 54, 50,000 54,50,000
Ameing £45.00 545.00
March 31, 2025
Mumbers 54,550,000 - 54,550,000
Amount 545.00 - S545.00
B Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
|par|_i=u|m Retained Earnings Total
As at March 31, 2024 [345.24) (345,24)
Prafit for the period 28.38 28,38
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income far the year (216.87) (316.87)
Firancial Guarantes issued to holding company = =
As at March 31, 2025 - AFLE.87) [316.87)
Profit {Loss) for the period 134,53 134.63
(ther comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (182.23) [182.23)
Financial Guarantze issued to SPIPL 1.34 1.34
As at March 31, 2025 [180.00) [180.90)

#As per our report of even date attached
For DESAI SAKSENA B ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Reglsiration Mumber 102358W

Alok K Saksena
Fartner

Membership No. DR5170 (DM : 0253BGEE)

Flace ' Murmbai
Date : 13/05%/ 3025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Eﬁgﬂ“ﬁ‘f

Karan Mangar
Director
(DIN : 08 766E96)

Flace : Mumbal
Date :13/05/2025
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SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED
Significant Accounting Policies

Corporate Information

TRa financial statements comprise financial statements of Solar Magic Private Lisvited {referred to a5 “the Compiny=) (CIN |
LI 0OMEI IS TCLIIAR3E) and for the period ended Mar 31, 2005, The company & & private company deeiciled by el i and is
incarporated weder the provisions of the Companiss A0 applicable &5 India, The regislered office of the company s Iocated 3¢
Sernaipa Bhavan, 4547 M G Bcad, Fort, B bad- 400 DL

Tha Comgany 5 prncipally egsged in the mamilactunng B drading of Termisric and trading of Festfizers, Dris Lpstems, Tubess, Plags
&t

The financial sataments were appeoved by the Board of Directon and aikorizsd for Badie an 13th bbay 028
Binificant Aecounting Palicles

Bakis of preparation

The financial stsftements of the company hive besn prepsrad in seeosdance with Indian Actointing Stardands (Ind A5) notified under
the Companiet (idiin Accooriting Stendards) Rules, ks amended by the Corgasie Indlan Acsaunting Standurds), 2045 and iha
ragvant smendment rules igiued thero #fter and Ehe rebevant peovisions of the Lompanias &1, 513 [(the Act],

The finenielal satempnts have Bis prepared on a histamol oast basi, encept for the following sssets are Gabilities which A
megsuned ot Fe valug or revilued amout:
« Castain frgncial msets dnd G blities measured a8 i value o #l ssrartised cost depending on the dassificationireiar dtEoLting
pilicy regarding financial instrumants]

- Emplayes dafined benefif assais/Tabligations] sra fecapnized as the net total of e fair value af Fan apsel; phes aciarisl bosges,
bass astunial gainz and thet present valug of the defined banefit sbligations,

Acczanting pofieies have been consizendly appied edEept whigre o newly gued accounting stendard i inglally adopted or 3 revision
b0 e adating scenanting Aarderd reqiFies a thangs in theu:mlngpn!qr hitherms inuse.

Surrenany of signifcant accownting palicies

Proparty, plant and eguipment

buzinesi combinatans and geadwill

Rusiness combinalians sre srooustod For using Sie scquisibon method The cost of gy acquisition iy measwid &y e apsiepan of the
esstiiteration transfermd mearured 2 asquisitkon date fait walui aad o amaunt of any fan controfieg inbendsts in the achquires, For
each Buifress combinarion, the Cempany electy whather i mupaure the non centrolling inerests in the scquires bt fal vikie or o
the prapartionats share of the acauines’s | dotifa ke net asreks Acguitithon-related costs are eapeened as Nnelreg,

AL The gegruisition dand, the identifiabie aisets aoquingd ard the labdiies ssiomad are recognized &l their sequisibon date fir vaies,
For this purpose, the labities assumad incisde carntingent lakilities mproseating present cbfigation and they are meapured ae thesr
aciquisition dadr ¥alues wrespective of the fact chat outflaw ol resowrce; embodying economic benafits is not prabable, Howevar the
fellerming atombs and liabilities scquired in & Bininnss combinetion ane measuied at the bacls ralcabed Belo:

-Tederred tax assets of lishilties, and the azsets or lpdives reltad teemployaag hinefl armangemants e recognised s meagped
inaccordangs with lnd A% 12 Ircoce Tax snd Ind AL 15 Empdoyes Benefits respectvaly

- Uabiiities or equity instruments ndsted o shae Bassd payment arrangemets of the scouires or share based paymesits
arargements of the Cofmpany enfored ima & reploze sham-based payment orargamests of the acguires are mensurad in
scoarfance with Ing A% 102 Share-based Paymonts at the acquisition detg,

- hasels for dispasal groups] that are classifiad a5 kald for sale In sccordance with ird #5105 Nan-current Axiibs Held for Saie and
Discostinued Dperatians are measuned in secordan e with that sandaed,



S0OLAR MAG IVATE LIMITED

i cant Accounting Policles

« Rearnquired rights sre measurad at & valu determined on the bagis of the remaining cantractial toam &F the related contrac, Sch
valustion does not condider potenthl reneanl of the rescquired right,

When the Compary sogsres a bisines, @ axessss the Tinancial assets and dabifities sssumed for appeosriate dla=sifica tion and
designetion in accordanie with the coreractual Terms, economic droumstanees ard partirenl conditions as &1 the scquisiti on daps.
Thiia includes the separation of enbedded derfetives in host cantracts by tha soquines.

1 the businesi sombination bs adhiend in stages. #my previnushy hatd souity irvteriit i re-measured ab ity scquisthn date Falr waiupe
and sy resufting gain or ks i recognised in profitor lass or OCL a5 approprate

Amy contingest onrderation o be ransferred by the aoguicer B recognised at fair valug ot the @oquikilion date. Condingeni
consideration clasified as an asset or Babiliny thet |5 a financial instrurnent and within the scope of Ind A5 103 Faancal Insiruments,
b= mensured 88 fair vabae with changes in fak viluw recogresed in profin o los., i the cantingen: canslderation is w0t within the scopg
of fad 45 305, It & messured in accosdance with the approgriste bhd A5, Comingent coralciration thatis dassfied as A iz nol -
migailrd it subsequent repanting detes and subsequest i sniloment is peesiind for wilthdn equiry,

Gandwill is inkially measured &t tosl, being tha sxeess of the aggregata of the considermtion transfenmd irsd the amexint recogaied
far pon-controfing mierests, and any previnus interess held, over the net identifiable assets acquired end Rabilities assumed, if the
falr value of the net amsat aigubed s Inowess of the Bgpregste conskderation ransfured, the Compary re-assessos whathar i Fas
couveetly idantdipd oll of che assats mequired and all of tha fakdithes assumed and reviews the procedurss uied o meREune the
smounts o be recagnived ot the acquisilien dete, IF the reassessment siil resules In a0 sxesss of the Falr waliee of nat assets agquired
oeed the apgregate congideration fansforrd, then the gain & recogaied in OO and ascumulsted Inoegqulty as capinal resere,
Hoawavar, IFihere B Ao dedr evicenes of bagain purchase, the ensity recogréses the gais dinactly in wquity a5 capinl reserve, swithout
rauting the same through B0

APt Enitial recogration, goadwill & messured at cost 235 any prcumulated impaliment lesses. For e purpase of mpalmment testing
poodeld acquired @ s business combinatian i, ram the acquisition date, sliocated be wech of the Company's cash-gensrating units
Ehat a7 xpetted to benefit fram the combination, trespestive al whethar sthar assets of liakilities of the asquires are assigred o
Eaase uniks.

A cach ganirabiag unit to which goodwill has been allocated i5 tested far impairsent annally, ar mone frequently whes thera b5 g
Indication that Fwe unit may be impaked. 7 1he receverabie amaunt of the cash pErRatng unit s less then it Carrying ameunt, the
impairment loss is allecated find to redute thie tarying smoant of any goadwill aliacated 16 the unk and [ o the ather assets of
B unlt pre rats besed om the carrging amaunt of cech sasat 1 the wit, Ay Impalmnent loss for gaodwil 35 regsgnised in profit er
Rerss, Ay impairmizns Bass recognised for geodwdl i Ant reversed in sub<asuent parods,

Where gaadwill has besn allocated 1o 3 cash-generating unit and paet of the operation within that unik s disgiozad of, the poodwil
Eisodiated with the disposed operation & includedd i the @rmping amount o the epsration when determining the pain o lass an
dirposal. Guadwill disposed in these cirumtances is measured Sased on fhe reletive valugs of the disprsnid operatian and the
pection of the cagh- onersting unit reteaned.

if theinltiad secounting for a besiness comblratian is Inarmdale b 'the and ol the reporting perad In whish the cembination acours,
the Company rapomts grositional amouees for e ib=ms Tor which te sccounting is ncamakdte Those provivenst ssmaunts gre
acjusied thraugh poodwill during the messurement pariod, or acditionsl assets or (igbililies are racognised, i feflect e
infarmetian obtained ol f3els and demamtancis that existed at ths acquishion dae tat, if moes, would e affecied thi
amcts recapnites a1 that dare. Thise edustments are c3iled 33 measummant periad acfusiments. The EWRE e M pend e
net estend one year fram the asquisition date.

Broperty, plant and squigient aoe stoted 31 o048, et af scrumulaned dupreciation and sczumiitzted bnpairment osges, If ary, The
Cast comprisks parchase price, bomowing costs if capltaization eribsrla ane mee and directly stirbiutabile cosn of bringing e ssser 14
irs weking condition for the intended use. Any trede disoounts and rabstes are deduscted I arrming s the purchace price.
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SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED
Significa ounting Palici

Each part of an item of propenty, plast ind equinment with & eodt that i sgrificant iy refation to she tatal coct of thd e is
deprediated separataly. When significent pants of plant and equipment are requited to be raplaced at intervals, the Campany
chipradiates Fiem ssparmely based on their specific umslul Tves. Uswiss, whena majee impectian is pardarmed, it cast i e mgnizad
In the cornying emcant of the plasy and equipment as & replacement If the recognitinn arileris are satisfiad. Al otber T pisie and
malnkanan cé £54E s recopnized in prafif ar by 2 Bcuned,

Subsequent eepandinure relited to an e of progerty, dlans and equipmant It added tn ks book vilse enly iF it increases the funse
bangfits fram itd previously assessed standard of perfarmance, Al ciher ENpEASES an edsting greperty, plant and equipment,
inclutfing day.to-£ay repair and malatesante expenditure and ost of raplacing parts, are chneed o the statement of profit and logs
Teatha paviad during which sush expenses arg incurred,

Borrawing eoaty dinectly attributable to soquisition: of praperty, plant @l squipmant wiich take substantial period of tmve to ged
ready far Exintended use are also elided to the axtant tey relote b kg period 1l such asets are ready ta be put o use.

An item of propeety, plant and equipmrant snd ary signilicant part Inftizly récognized s de-recognizad upan disposal or wiben ne
fubwrn aconomic benefis ane enpacied from its use af dissasal A Bain or loss arising on derRcegrition of the aszet bealilated oz
thir diffaresecs between the net dispeas! procesds: snd s Eariiping amownt of the asset] & inthuded in the income sEaisment wrhen the

Propery, plant ard aquipment |5 desetognited,

Expenditize direcily relating to constnsction sctivity Is capitabed indirset edpenditune. ireurmed during construetion perdod is
tapitalized to the extent to which the expenditers is indirectly refated o constraction o 15 incidentsl thisete, Cthar indirest
expundbture [incuding borrewing costs] Incurred during the consiructian Patiod witich ks naither related te the mnstruspion Bty
nuris incidkartal thareto s chargad to the statement of proeft snd ks,

Coadti ! asvets nod ready lar use at the bainnee shest date are Fdaied under enpital work-Fn- gragrass,

Depreciation methods estimated usoha llves and sidusl value

Ueprecizlion s caindied on straight ling method using the usehil Ives estimated by the management, which are equal ta thess
prescribid undhs Schedule Il to the Cormoanies gt 2003007 the managament’s exirate of she usehs §e of 3 tem aof preparty, nlast
#nd eqifpment at the tme of acquisition o the remaning ek lifs an & fubseguent raview is sharter than the envkaged i the
aforvinid echedule, depreciotion is provided at ¢ higher rate based ai The mEAgRmEnLs esimate of the useful Bs/ rEmning ekl
kfe.

The praperty, plant and ecuipment acquined under finance keses & deprecisted ovor e eset's wsaful Bife or over the sborier of tha
#55e!'s uieful Be and the lpase term F there Is a0 ressonabln carainty that the company will abegin awnerihip at the snd of this lgass
t2rm. Lexshold iand & arecetised an a straight Fre basis over the balanon petind of beasa.

Thio dseti’ revdisd valoes and wisfual lhees an tavivaed, pad adjusted @ appropriate, 84 the end of sach repoviing pedod. A asser's
CHTYINE AMO U i wrilten down: imersdintely to #s ressvirabie 3mont B the asset's carrying amount | greacer thin i estimatad
recoarsde amount. The residual valuss #¢ Aot maone than 5% of the origtal tastof the 255st.

Intangibls mmets
Entarglle aamehy shat are acquired by the Company aie mesuned itiltinlly 3t easl. Afber ndtial recognition, an IntEngise azsst &
carrled atits eost beas any pcoumulited armatigaton and acaemulsleg Impaimart lozs.

Subsiguint expendiure is apitalived oy wehatt I increazes tho future econamic Benefts Araim thee mpecific asaet bo wivich iLrolames.
An intanglile asset & derecognived on dispesal oe when no ftuee eronemic benefits sre ekpected Froen e use sl disposal

Lopzzsaridng from relivement and gad=s or kasses arisng from dispasal o an intanpible aamet arg meEazured & the olffarence bateen
the net dispasal pracands and the carrying amount of the asie] nd are recagnioed in the statement of picti and lass,



SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies

Amsarisation methods and pedody
Irtargibla asiets are amartined on 3 straight line basks cwer e udalid 1ife af five years which bs estimated by the manapemeont

Tha astirnsted wanful llves ol intangible assets and the smerisatioa pefiod are feveewed at the end of each fnansil year ind thg
amorisation mathed is muipsd to reflact the charged pottern, @ .

[} Researchand development

Rgvsrase expendiborn pertabuing ta research b5 chasged o the Statemant 6f Profit and Lows, Development caits of produste we ik
charged to the Statemant of Profit and Les: inthe year it ncuried, unless a product's technologicnl feasibibty has been st mklchad,
i whith tase such edpendiure s capitalised. These costs ars charged o the respectivi hebds in the Stabement of Pralit and Lass In
the year it I incurmed. The amount capitalized comprises of sxpenditure that can be drectly Mtebuted o alecsted an a remonible
and consistert besls for cresting, producieg and making 1hg agsat rendy far b5 intended we Propemy, Plant and squipmen e bl pd
for reseaseh and deunlopment are copitalived and depredated in sccordance wWith (he poiices staled for Property, plent and
equpment and Infangible fuet.

[d] Impairmeent of nom fnandal assets
The Lemparry assesses, 3t @ach réporting datn, whether there i an Indicstion that an asset may be Impaired. IFany indication exists,
or when anedl impalrment testing for 4a gzset is required, the Compamy estimate: the amat's fecoverable arnount. AP pssetts
mommrable amount i the higher of an 3z's or Caifrgeherating undt's [CEU) fair valss less cosks of dispesal and I8 vabam in e
Bervverable amount is diterined for an badbvidual e, unless the assel doss not genarate cash inflows that are agely
independant of thome from other assebt oe groups of sssets. Whan the cariying asmount of =n asset o7 €U exceads it recoverahle
Birount, the assed is considered impalred and o asitben down ba Its recaverable smount.

Imipairmant |oyses sre recognised i the statomend ef peofi| and loss. Afwsr impairment, deprecistion |s previded on e rgiged
c@rming armaunt af the: npet over 13 remeicing usful (e

fe] Foralps ewirercy trarslatian
(i} Fumctional and presestation curmenoy .
itemes [rcluded in the financhl statements of the ety ot mesured LEng the curremcy el he primary aestomic endrenmnenat in
which the enitity cparates {the functioral currency’). The financial statements arg presenied in Indian fupee [INR), which & entity's
Turstianal snd presentetion iy,

liih Tramsactioes and Badases
Forgign cusrency transactons are Eranslated inta the luschions! oameney using the exchange rafes st the dates of the fraraciang,
Foreipn exchange gairg #nd losses resuling from the settemass of such transacsbans and Eream’the trarilation of menetary asses and
labiities derominated in forsign curmendies at year and exthange raos s recopised in wtabament of prafit ar las,

{#]  Financial incoements
Fineacial soveky and financlal Hakilifey e recognised whem o Company becomes a party o the cantracisgl micdiors of rhe
inskrumends

Inttial Recognition

Finorcia! 2ssets and finarcial linbilties are sty mieaserod 31 Fair vake, Transaetion: oocks Thak e directly saibutable o the
acqusition of issue of financlal aisets and financial llabiies {other than Anencial aisots and francial Bakilitie: ot i vl thrsugh
profit o loss and ancillany £aik refaied i borrosirgs) are added t o deducted fram e Fair walup af the financid| snst or finasciad
lNabditlns, a2 appeaprisle, on inltld racagaition. Trarsaction feasls diredly astrlatible to the acquisilion of finessisl asets o lingmeinl
liabHEles 2t fair value traugh profit or loss ane mecogrined immediacaly in Sfatement o1 Praft and Loss,



SOLAR MAGIC PR D

Signific ecounting Polici

Chassilizaticn and Subsequent Messirement: Financlal fssets
The Comgany clateilies Fnancal assats o subsequently rmeasured 32 amortied cost, fairvalis thratgh ather comprehiershes booma
{"POCE o falr valu thiough profitor loss ["PUTPL) on the baili of Following:

=the eivy's buslness model for managing the finentel ossets and
- the contractual cadds flow characteristics of the fnancal asset.

1) Amiortised Cogt
& Fnancial szt shall be dassified and measered at amartiseid ess i both of the following conditions sr mes;

- the finencial asset |5 hedd within 8 business modal whass ohjective is to hold financiad assets in arder to collect cortractual cagh
Hicrws and

- lfe= contrachoal terma of the finssclal asset ghea rise on specified dates to cash Fows that sre solely payments of princhsl asd
mlereat oo the prindgal amaung ourstanding.

[El] Fair'Waiss shrough other cosarehensie Inroms
& Finandal asset shall be dassfied and measured at fsirvalse Swroegh OO1F bath of the Tolewing condtios bre mag:

= the fnancial mysel i held within 2 business modal whose objecie (s schiemnd by both collecting contrattual cash Sews 306 ialling
fensrciel assets ard

+ i coniFaciail berma of the Ananciad assed gane rse oo spaciied dates o cash dliws hat are shlaly paymants af principad and
Interest on the prinsips! amount cutstanding,

{iiih Fadr Wakue tBrouph Profit or Loss
A finandal assst shall be dassified 2rd maadussd st ol valos thraugh peedit or toss wnless it s measaned &) smamised it orat Tl

vaskue thraugh G1.

Al rasagrited financlal assets arg sutequently measurad I hesir entinety at gilher amoetsed eosn gr fair valisg, depending on tha
classification af thi Nnendal esets.

tlamiication and Subiequant Meassremaonit Finascial BabiliGas
Fnansial |labilities sre classified as sither Gnandal lsblities 21 PVTRL &¢ ‘niner fnaneid labilglag,

[if Finandial Riabilited ak FUTPL .
Fimancial Babdlives are classilied a3 ot FVTPL when the finarcral Eakllivy is held for brading or are designated upon lnitlal fecognition as
FYTFL Gairg of Losseson Dabiisies hald for trading are recogmised i the Statemant of Profitand Leisa,

[ Other Flaamclal Liabilitie;
Otbver Tirancial labfitlos {Incluifing borrowings and irade and ather payabias) ate subseneently measured at amortised coat uslng the
effecthva Intimrest method

Tha affacthv interest method s @ mathed of talculating the amomised cost of & fingneal Fability amd of allocating interast axpansa
gver the relevant period, The effective interest rate i 1hie rate thas eiacily discounts sstimated future cash paymonts {ratluding nl
feps aod paints paid or recefved that fnem sn intepral pan of the efecthe interst rate, transaction costs and fther promiums o
diszounis| thraugh the expected lile of the finarcial Rsbility, ar jwhere apprapriats] a shorter perdiod, o the fat CAIMIAE Mo an
iritind rezagnition,

Impairmient of financial aisets

Finandal ss2ets, otter than those &t FYTPL are assesssd o incicatars of impairment at thve end oF sack reparting pariad, The
Company recognise: & kais dllowance for expacied credit losses on Hranetl asset. In case of drode moetables, the Cempany fallowes
tha simplified appeoach permitiod by Ind 4% 108 - Fisanclal nsttumrends for recognition of Impsinment less sbiawsrce. The appiication
of simplibed appresch doss not require the Conminy to tack crarges in credit riss. The Company calodstes tha sepecied eradit
Intimt arbrade recobablos usirg @ pravision matricon the baii of ks bistarical cradit o8 experiones,
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SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

Sigmificant Accounting Palicies

Perecegition of fina neisd mises

The Compary derecognises a finknzial 2xses whan the tostractual rights ta B esth Hows From the azset exping, ur when It wrsnsters
th Flaancial asset and substartialy 3 the risks and rewards of ownership of the assat to 3nnthar party If the Companie neliher
trans fars-nee retaing substantizly all the rids and feiwards of cwnership and continuas 13 contral the transherred asse, e Cesmgarny
Tecogtises Ay retained Intarest in the ssset and an assocsted lablliy for enaunts Tt may hide o pay. I s Companys rotaing
Funstanchlly all eve fisks and rewands of camarship of s trandenmd Snancid azset, the Compary cantinues fo recapaise the fnanclal
et and alie recogrées & callstershized borrowing B the pmc=ads received,

Derecognition of fimamelal labilities

A financlal by [z derecognized when the oblpaton wndar the Nalsdity is discharged or cancefiad e espires. Wher an xiitnp
firmancial Rabdity s replacad ¥y drather fram the sanie lender on substantisly ifferent terms; er the tersw of &0 eesting linbiity are
substailay mo<ified, such an pchangs or modificasion i trested as tha deracopstion of the ariginal labdity and the moogniion of
a rew llabilty. Tre difference in the respeciive carying amaunts & recognized in the statement of prafic or loss,

Eruity Irnsstmes in subsddiries 3ad assodatos
Irszstment in sabsidlanas and assodistes are carvied ateoil, Imparment reeagnitad, if sny, 15 reditsd fiam the CHTYINE valua,

Cfentng of Emandal Instrumants

Fanancial sssels and Nnancld Bablizins are oflset and the net smount k& raperied in the balance sheat i chess = 3 ciurrerkly
enforceable legal fight to offiet the recognised ameuss sod therg |k a® int=nticn ba sitle on a net bads, 1o realise e ascals gnd
uritde the labilities simotnneoudy,

Darivative fimanclal Instromsenits

Derivatres Bnivstiol mstrumients ane initially recognised st falr salue an the date-on which a deriathm cantract Is antered Into @nd are
subsequently re-meatured & far vibue Derlvathvs are carvisd 35 financlal szisl whon tha fair value is posilive and a3 Hrancs!
Habdlales when the far value (s negative,

Financial liwhitied and cquity inrtrumenis
Classification as debt or aguing

Dbt wnd eguity instruments issuad by the Compony are slaslied s cthar finuncial kabilities or s wosity In accoidance wilh the
substance of the contractinl srrangements and the definitions of 2 firancial E1bility and &n ety instrement,

Eguiy iestnamant
An pquity isspumenl i3 sy contract the? avidénces a resdual inferey In the assats af an erdity afte deducting all af s Fabsiigies
[quity Brstruments issued by o Company are recopnised at the proceeds raceoad,

Takes

Cusrant meeme tax

Current income fae gasets and Bablitles are messured at the amount expecied 10 be recoversd lvam or pald fo the tasation
hofites. The tax rates and tas lews used to compute the drount ang these thet aro enscled or substantively enacted at the

meporting date,

Curre ineame toe rdlatng to Mems rocegrised outside prafit o Soss & recognbied ouside peodit o loss {sither | othor
cornprehantive intase {001} o In equityl. Current tax tems arg rescgnigad in correiatien te the undelying trensaction sther N Dl
af dirtclly o equity. Managemiest periodically evakiateg positions taken in tBe taw roturng with mespect o dituetions 11 wivich
applicabde tax rigualitions are suwhjsct io mterpremation end establishog provisionz whars sparndate



SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED
Significant ting Paolici

i} Deferred tax

Ralarred income tax i§ recognized using the babince sheet approsch, datsrred by & recognized o temporary diferene s st th
balanze shaet cabe Between the tax bases of sseis and liabdites and their carrylng amouanss for financial TEOOTERE pifsasEs

Dafarred irsame ton assuts 6f8 fecognized for all dedictbi= Remparany cifferencas, carry forwaed of unosod ta credie anel pnised
Lax losses, to the safert that (€ B prehele that tcasla prafit will be avallible agains which the dedudi)= temparary dfferoncss,
and the carry forwand ofunused taxcradits and tnsed ta loctes can be utiised

Defernad fax assets and Safered b Eabilitias are offset [fa legally enforceable ight exists (- sat off corrant tax EERLE ATAINS ¢ purrend
tax Wabilibes and the dedferred taces relole fo the samp tasabls ety and the same taksbion authay,

[wi} Ftinimrem alRernae Tax

7]

1il

MAT payaile for & yanr & charged 1o tha wtetement of prefit snd loss a3 parent faw The Cornpany recognizes MAT crediE avaidahle is
the statement of profis and los as deferred tax with a comesponding asset anly to the extent that thare |s probatdity that the
Campany will pay normal Incama tax during tha specifisd peried, Le., the pariad for wivdch MAT eredit is allowed (o be cariad
farmard. The ssid asset B shown as WAT Cradit Entitiemant’ umder Deferred Tex. The Campany reviaws the cama & ssch Fesparting
dabe and writss down the asset to the extent the Coripany does not heve probakis eertanty thet it will oy norrmal tai dusring she
spaciiiad pernd.

Inuentaries:

Py Mateslals are viskesd at kowar of miving average cost ar net realistile valoe
¥bahes and Spares afe vahned at soorige ool

Findihard stacks sre valued ot cast or nak reafaable valis whicheyve s \ormrur,

The valuation of imventores eludes s, Sutiss of non refundable seture gad direct expenses asd chher divact cast atributahle ta
the cost of Inventany, net of eacise duty/ eotintervaiing duty [ education cess and valus sdded tix.

et raalisalile volue b the estimated seliing piice in the ovdinary courss of bisimess, lnss estimated cases of coevpletion Brnd ihe
extimated €osb necumary 29 mials the =ale. The not realizsble walug o sork: In-pre res s derta rrmineed with reference i the sslling
wpricesaf relited finithad products. Rew: materials and other supplies held Tor e in preduction of finished products are nat withen
cor bl cost mioest I coted whore material prices fieve declined snd It is entimated thas the éost of the Finished grocue s wil
exceed thiek nat reallesble value,

Hevenue recognition

Fgwanue is recognittad 10 e exbent that i i probable that the seonomic banefss vl How 10 the Company and (ke rovarus can ks
refialily meas e, Revenus 15 measumed at the 7 vl of the corsidisatian reseiied or rectivable, taking tnto BECOUAT Eonbiae baally
defined terrns of payment and encuding taxes or dutes collisied oo bahelr &l third paniies,

The Company coffects taxds diach as GIT, sales tar/value 2ddad tae, servico Tai, eir o bahall of the Govermmant and, theredoom, thege
sie ot econamic benefits fowing b fhe Lompany, Hence, Shey are eiduded from the aforess i reemuns ncamn,

Effecive Apnl 1, 2013, the ompary adopied ind A5 £15 “Hevenyan Trm Contracts with customes™,
Tha fellewing speclfic recagnition critens must slie be sset belory revsmue is recapnized:

Sale of poods
Revanue from sale of manfactaned ard tradad eooch |5 recsdniied wher the prdformeanes etlipetion is wtifled ata point of gme
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SOLAR MAG IVATE LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies

fnterest nenms
Intesest ncom, incuding income arling from other Tranckl Insirumients measured & amorizsd ok, & recegnived waing tho
alfeclive intereak rate mathad,

Dividand incoma
Diivicencts are recognised wihen rght 18 recaive iz eskablizhgd

Employes Banafit Obligations:

(1§ Short-term aldigation

Liabiilities Far wages and 5aleies, induding non-manetary beeefits that sre supected to be seitled wholly within 12 menths alles the
end of3he period in which the emplness render the felited servce are recapnised In respacy of employaes’ serdces up 19 theend of
e tegaring period and are measursd 8t the amaunt espected to be paid when the labilkies are sectied. The labifitles are
presertod & sutrant amployes bamedil sliligations in the balance shsse

{11 Dthier fyeyg-term emplayea banelit ohfigations
The eamicd [eve ablgations ane presentad & curert Habikes in $1e balance shest &% the angiy daes not kave an wmconEitional

right e defer settement for at least bwelve months after the reporting parisd, regardless of whes the actusl seitiemant is exancied
ba-noour.

Leases

The determinatics ol whether an armngoment & {or mntaing| @ kose It based on Ehe subsiares of the aangement at the mciption
of the lepse, The Irrangament s of confaing, 3 leass I Bifment of the afrsangement b5 dapundant on the we of & speclfic past or
assety ard the arrangemint conveys 2 right (6 uie the 1oset o agssls, even iFthat Fight & not eplicithy s peciled i an arrangeemi,

(i} &5 a lesser

The comnpany recegnises a Right-of-wse asset and & losse obify at v lease commarcement date. The fight-of-use aas] = initially
maagurad M oost, whith compeiieg the initial amount of tha leain lablity adjusted dor any loase piyments made 3k ar hefaer the
cosmmencemant dibe, plus ary Initiad direct cedls inourmed snd an sitimate of costs 1 Shmaatis and remone the underlylag asser ar

The Rigst-ol-use aiset (3 subssquently degrecised isieg sh siralghi-ine mathad frem the COMMmERdement oate 1o the earler of Fhe
and of the useful life of the right-cd-use assot or the end of the lrsse term. Thee ostiniaked uzeful Bved of right-ol-use a5t are
determited o the same basic as these of property and equiperent. Eghe ol ue sssets are deprecisted on 3 Straight-ae basis aue
the shocter of the leese Wi bddibion, the Right-of-use asset |3 penodealy reduced by impairment losiss, If any, and &djasted far
tarlain re-meanrements of the leaye liobiiny.

Ther lease Eability ix inishaily moansesd 8% (he preses] vals of the lease payments that are rot peid at bt commancement dite,
dispeunted using tho Inferest rate imeficit in thie bease or, IFthas rase ceanat be readily determined, compsny's Incramantsi borrawing
rate.

Thie leese labilty o measued a1 amortised st usiig the effective intenest method. it d remeasured whin there it 3 dharge in flibure
legse pagmants @ising fram a change in & indes or rate, if e i 8 change In 1he comparny's estimate af the ssnount exnpacied 1o ks
pevabile wder 8 residusd values guarantee, or IF compary chanpes fs =semment of whther it will cxereisa & purchale. extengion or
barminatan aplion

Whea the leade lishlity Is remeasured in the way, a corEpoading adjurTment i made 1o the sanrging ameunt of the right-otuss
anset e i3 reconded In predt e lows I thie @iryieg smeent of tho righs-gf-ume assat has been reduaced ie s

Shar-term leases and leases of bavw-vabue 3o

The company has elecled sot to recognise sighs-of-use assits and lease labifites Tor short-term laases that hawe o lease teim of 13
rranthe, The tompiry mecogrifies the leiae paymants pssociabed with these e g5 an espensz on @ siralghtdine basis ower 1he
losso tarm unlogs the recoipts are structueed 10 froozase in line whh Brpected gereral Inlation W compensas for the expected
inRabiomary cost incnaded
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{ii] Ata lessar

i}

]

1=l

Leasss are classified as Hnanes leases when substantally all of the rsks and reeaids of awnershlp ransfer from the Compa i 10 the
lessee. Amounts chie from fesseas undar Trbece leases are recordad 85 recetvobles at tha Comgany's nat Weestment in tho lgasps
Fimance kase iniovng & allocsted to scoounting peviods 00as 10 reflect & tomstant porisdic rate of rebam on the nat inwestmang
aviiandng by respedt of the lpimn,

Ledse inesme from operating |eases wheve the company i a lessor is reoogrised in inesme on 2 stralght-liae basls over the beae tirm
urless the recetats aee Srucbured to kncrease in fine with sxpected penersl inflation to compessate for the sxpectod inflatiarury cosl
e,

Previsiony, Contisgent Labifie and Contingent Assets
Priviniany sre recogaised whan the Company has 3 presem séligation lagal o eonstructive) a5 & resdlt of 3 past svent and it &
probabla thak an sutbow of resoure:s, that can bie reffably estinated, will be recusred fo settle such an oligstion.

A present obligation that arises from past averds where it [s eithar not grobahble that an autflow af resouress will be regquired o sumle
o @ refisble estimate of the amount cannet be made, 15 distlos=d as & cantingent liabilin., Contirgent liabilitiee arn ake dieiged
whes thers |5 a pessible obligation arlsing from pss svers, the existence of wiich wil b confirmed enly by the oecirrence o non -
oogurrgnce of ons or mone encanain fulure events nat wholly witkin the cantral of e Company,

Claims againit the Commany whern the peaiibilty of aoy outflow of resounces In sebile e k reamote, ang nat disckosed 55 Coningent
llabdities.

Darrowing Costs:
Aorrewing costs ane Interest #nd other tosts that the Canpany incurs in conneetion with the borrawing of funds and Ik moasered wich
referance ta the gffective interest e [EIR) applicable to the respective barrowing,

Rarrowimg costs that are sitrfautasle to the acquisitan, constructiog or raduction of B qualilying aidst ar capitalised as part ef cowl
of such asset till such time as the asiat s ready for Ibs Incended wee or gale. & quadfyirg aeet iz on asser thet necegarily regeired a
wibstargial pericd of Hme o get ready for its intended e or sale. All ather barrowiag codts are recognised an an expensi in thy
perind In wisich they are intcamred.

Lepment Rzporting - Idemification of Sepments

A sperating sagment |5 & compensst of the Compary thar engages In businass & civities Erom which it may eae Pevenues and iy r
mipenses, whess spemting results e regularky reviewed by the compeny's chiof Cparaling decision maker to make decisisas for
which duesete finandal kndeemation bs avallabla. Based an the management apgroach as defined in lad AS 108, the chiol egi=mting
dechion maiter guakiales the Compar’s peilarmance and sfocates ssources basad ao an anatysis of varaus perormance indsesiors
by bisingss segmests and gecgraphic segmens

Earningy e share

Bkilt anmings per chare

Eathc eamings par shars ix caleutzood by dividing:
- the prodit attributalble bo owrers of tha tomanny
« by the weighied average number of equity sharss autstanding during e Eancal waar, adjistad for banus elements i equity
shares Issued during the year

Cilutad gornings per shane
Clluted earnings o share adjusis tha Nigures used in the determinetion of basic edimings per sharg to ke info aceount:

- Ehn gffer incomo TAY ellect af inderess and othe: Fingnging costs assodaed with diloche pomerrtisl Eguily
- e wighied aversps number of additional squity shares that mauld hawe baan sutstanding assuiring the canvesiion of &1
dilitive potential squity share,
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Cash and cach eoulvalasts )
Cash and cash equivalent i the bafance sheat cpsarie cash at banks and on hand arvil Shart-berm depgsits with an origing maturlby

arthrae monshs or bess, which are swbject to an Insignificant rsk of changss in value.

For tha perpeds of the statement al cxib flows, cosh end cash sgulvalents consist of cash and shori-tarm deposits, as definac) above,
net of outstzanding Bank swerdrafts 25 thay are cansidared an integral part of the Campany’s cash managamens.

Camert/nan current classificaties
The Compaety préserss assets aad liaBiktie: in the balsne shest based o eurrent! non-currert classifcation, An asset s tramed 3z
curreni when icis;

= Exprcted to be realised ar intended to be sold o consumed in normal opersting cycle

= Held primuarily for the parpost af tading

- Emperted b ba reabied within bedve mesthe sfimr the repoving perdad, or

- Cash or cach equibalast unles resirkted from being escharged ¢ wied to srtsle a Habikty for ot ledsr Dveive months afiar the

reparting gperiod
All athar assels are classfed as non-cunmpt,

B Habily & guiren when:

-tk cwpected 1o e amttied in normal cpsrating cicle

-8 & bl peimariy for the purpese of mading

= [E I glse by he s ettled within twilee months after the reparting pedod, e

= There is ne ereonditonal right to-defer the setiemet of tha lability for ok least tweive monts #Fler the repoiting period

The company clessfies all ather Bahilties as non-gurren,
Delersed tan assats and Babililies are clamsified as non-oarrent issets and BB e

Thi cperating cpcle Is the time between the acquisitian of sssets for pracessing aad their sealisation In cash §ed cash esalents The
company has identifed tivelve manghks a4 its aperating eycls

Boundirg of amounts
All emaunts discosed ino e inantial statements and niotes have hesn roendad ol to the rearest Likk as per ths recuiroment of

Schedule B uniedd oiFerwse staced.

Significant secounting jodgementi, sitémates and asEUmptian

The preparation of thess finandal statesments in cosloamety with she recagnition and meEssuremen principles of ing AS requires the
manigesenl of the Consgadiy o make estmabss ascd msumptiong that sffect e feporbed biances of assets and Babilties,
dclosures: refating (o contingent Habilified a3 a1 the date of the finandal staiements and the reported amounts of noems gnd
g panse for the perods presemed,

Critizal Estirnates and Judgments

Fairvalue measuresant af Finanlal Instrumenas

Whien the fair valuas of firancals assets and financal Eabiites resarded in the financial stFlements @anal be mesmred based oo
geated prices s acthve markets, their Faie valuo & reatored using valuation tochnigues which involve various Judpaments and

aisumptions.

Estireation of net realizable valus Tar inventories

fmeentory 15 stabed af the lower of cost and ael realizable vahos (MAY)

MRV for campleted Inveniony 15 aisesied by reforence i market conditions and pelces existing 3t the reportieg date and iy
determimed by the Cempany, based on camparable transactions sdeifed,
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Racevarahility of trade recoivasiss

In fase of trade recelvibies, the Company follows the simelified approach perrdtted by fad A% 109 — Frssdial bsrurmmyinis far
fetggnithon of Impalrment loss sfowance, The applicetion ol srplited spproach doms rt reguine the Comparny to track chiznges in
credil risk. The fompany oilcudate the espicisd credi loases on trade recsivabiss using a provition matrls g8 the bask of is
Fesborical cradit s edperianse,

Usaful liwes of praperty, plaat and equipmentfinisngile asmts

The Cemnpany rowiews the sseful Ife of proparty, plind ind equipment/fintangible. assets at tha end of mach rapaning period. This
regsipsment may result in changs in depreciation expense bs fulure serlads.

Tha managament’s edlirate of the usofid §fe af few bems of plant and equipment on 3 subseguent redow s pnvisaged shister than
the Schecule I of the Act, <m the Basiz of internal swsdustion of the company, Atordingly, the Sepiecation [s previded at g higher
rae hased on the management’s esflimate of bhe useful b remaming wsefu life,

Walualban al Jelerred beg a3s=is
The Company revkees the semgng amount of defarred e asets at the end of ech reportng pensd. The
palicy ler th
Biean eapdsined undaer Note :bave i Sl



Wy

il  iupieg

WSS PUL | D3 inig.

| |
| 1M i
o s
(drudwes !
B 0T e I:.:-_rl..ﬁﬁ!!n
U pREs Bupdfesss ppy dumdag it

-

.1.*6.__:“_ hﬂﬂ_

Jdag

.‘!.l..._.iﬁ.._._r NP U g e i
Setaiim gy [P SRR SRS AL S5O0

Apmdoid Jo

34

12 o UOpUEEO U e W) ding ey JERAEY

o]

juayx

FILT "TL 4yRITH P STOT _nmhntu—.wlnltitpﬁqﬂ.u!tﬂ._ U Paay 3L

SRiaS044 BITRASAIT §5 FPEIP SO0 (el

AL L prom L AU R 0 | T R L 0 5 ) L O TS e e e i

A b D T e Wy g

e g g Tupnonsq 15U ETE 0N ke pamoayiodliy B 103 nd s po yued Yiiedood as o sucp
Sursiuca s i e Rasg DR AW S8 Pey ey iaoR Y JEUS DY P B ALsug 5

LLLH
TThL [T I0°RET 1571 e EEETE LT [T ETEe] TUERE FoIen
'11°] ] i} AFEL ledack (17 b 1 i)
-8} L1 11:] eyl linwTl £ HRL JAR0L T ey S0 8F] Y 0 Ty
¥ EL 1ET [T GFEE ESGEE frg il el Lok A fot
e pa] B f.a n ELD T EEL T L1 BT AT SR BT R
FTFT SEDL EVLET 5E EVEET B Iegal b 4% e ri by P R
FTES EE'EE (LR 1= LE EOTET E EOGER (e )]
7 TR e o i iy Tipng YO TE O LT T T ECUE AL PO
i 7y fitjzmpag ey 18 T fuBmEnpeg Bk oy L LN
TSN PRI | b LT
SThE TrEt T [T mEe MEE T2 T ) oy
ey
= 3 p- gy
kial D ST TURLE LR [hq 1] (L LRl
4] = EEE M = T LAy
L T { = 1K1 SN L B
T il LT 1] [ 34h] BEe¥D BRI Bur
ST oy 2] + Bl Bupprg
3 : POOTTEWSEAL  wraE TR AW [T Cl 1) WERE 'TE
; Fapad sl Jajan i
il ; fowy Ieny fuiapag R 3t oy ujaaRing
FEE VN 1 NE0 a0 FeRLmn g =

o T
AR _:lclm.__.._._- Addldndd =

e

ST02 "TE ¥V 90 030N Bv3A IHL 803 SOAEVELV IS Y ONVRE B1 iGN

QN I0vAEd ST9vw avI08



SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO FINARNCLAL TEMENTS FOR THE YE&AR ENDED AR 31
|5 ANAKCAL asizrs |
pAmuist i 1N Lakhs)
P " CAaat
e o= Morch3L 2025 | warch3n aama
OFHER FURANCIAL AESETS
Bom Carrent
Fizancial aseeis carvied ot amarticed con
Intetanl grrryed St nod dis 500 5.50
Less - ProviSian aininderest acorued but nef dis _|4om f4.0m)|
Tatal 12d 153
e
Ciifrant
Financld avety cartded a2 amorieed cnis
Interast acerued Bil nsd dae K4z LA
Tel I_.-H. 1X70
& INWENTORIES I
[Amount Is INK Lakhs)
. At s ar
il Maich §1, 2025 Mtarch 17, 3024
(aleed 3t lewer of Cost ard Mt Bzaliabile valun)
Rawy materiys 21048 s
WP a.0m onz
Stock in rada 35E.43 3054
Fntabid poods 1LB2 1.1
ez Provician en besuninrg [ {9009
Teml 303 54 11353 |
|7 TRADE RECE I WADLES =E|
lﬂnuumlnlﬂhﬁ
Al it Azag
ot March 31, 2025 March 31, 24
Mk Curmanl
Trace Recefradiig from others a5 35 44
A9 E5 Eiw
Breadiug ol § eoerily du sl
Tradi receivphis considerad goed -Unmmeursd 1186 BIT
Trade ricdinatle whlch have slgificant ncragas in ced mal ITRE 916
39.65 a5.44
Provighon for Empoctad Credk Loss
Trade receivabis which bave aigel fcssd nereasg i cradil righ {2758y (29.1a]
Frade receivabis eosdit Impalred - -
|z7.58] [FETT|
TE] i
Curmnd
Trade Recerables fram sthivs 23045 a5
Bt pwli b roew rala el S rties [Riafer fate 31 H 258
FETR T IVYAE |
Brankupad Smourlty deralls
Trade receivable camidered pood Liseured %18 7.0
LS 217.04
115 237.54

1| Mo debis duk [previcns year B kel by Siresters or other afficen s 1h company or any af them, sthar sevorably ar
jintly, with any ather person or Tiade ar Otser Recehable dus by frme or private compan ey ety nowhich i
cimEber is @ pariner, a difeciar or o member,

[} Trade Hacamaking Appng Schedule arc s Below



IC FRIVA ITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

il Tracg: Receiabiles Apaing Schedele are as bilow :

(5. casH AND LS EIUIVALENTS

l

[Armaur in N2 Lakha)

AL Ak LIRS
1
s March 31, 3025 | March 31, 2ma
Ealuecey with bank in curret sicauats 823 45,11
Cah o hang 0.5 1.0
251 LN

[Paricutirs Srutstanding from due dati of payment a5 on March 31, 3035
Upta & 5 Monkhs - 1%z IT03F | Mosskhan :
Manths 1 ¥ear Years Tare Fyuars Tatal
urad frach receivaties — ensidured good 1] 4112 1L57 : = 18343
Urdipuingd trace pecstvbles — which Rave signiicant * - 500 538 15,61 PRl
ncraass [ credl sk g
Uncispeiisd fade resehbles ~ credk g ared 5 - - - 0,68 &6
Dispuied tradi racevabies — corsidorad gocd 2 ] = = - -
DEsputed b receratles — which Fave signncent - - - - 5 =
‘mm recetsbles — credit Impared = T : 3 ;| .
Suly Tatal 198,33 axi2 16,97 5 3% ir.3e 27110
Lesis: Aliowance for o el Inpavery Expected ol s | ._ 5.00 53 17.29 I7.60
[Tatal ; | 10533 43132 11,97 - " 14347
.
Particulars Cutstanding from due date of payneent as on March 31, Ab24
Lipto 5 Markhs- 1Te2 x Mo than
& Manths 1 ¥ear Wairy Lot e 3 yeam Total
Undegpubed trads feceivities — mnsdved geed 145,95 EXG0 7] iy T ITETE
Lirckputad T decevabins — which have sigrifeant - - 5.5 ] oy 2840 |
| IFecrae i comcl rist
Uadispted trade recsivatles — crodt imjpained - - - - ] 066
Disputnd tracs resehables — conddemd good B % = = - —
Despuled radi repekabies — mhich have: - 7 = = 3 =
Sub Totsl 18535 e ] 11,93 LEG 21.55 13,35
Leszs; Allorwance far credd impainedFapa ched oesit boss 4,47 LB FENE] 016
Tatal 18535 2.0 [(XT] . (ELAE) FIEWE]




OLAR C PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

(8. omHES AisETE
[Amount T INR Lakhs)
A at A= at
b :
articulars March 34, 2005 March 31, 3024
Mon Currint
Advvancas ether than Capital advamces
= Security Depeiits with Gowernment sutharisies and gthars 15,58 950
«Aftavianite of Sourity Deposits with Soverrmest sutherities and athers {1.04] iLam
Total 14,54 B.54
Cuirend
- Payment al Taves [fet of Frovisions| 0,51 LT
+ Balances with Satutony, Government Authoriies &.60 .
Othars
- Prepaid aypesses 132 234
Total £33 251
fuz at A2 o
: =d Ta
44, Deferr ® Adget m,:;mmgg;? Whraken e
«Dafamad Tax Assar 1181 o
Tatal 11L& -
10 ineawT Tax
Asar Ao
Particulars M::j'| 31, 2025 L E]
Unrecognised deferred tan aassts
unrmm' d 2o Ingses _1_'_1.[[4 14643

The Compaiy cffsets tad 356t and lisbfities i and galy if it hias 2 legally enforceable right 16 se% oM Arent 18K A55ALE ind Currans Tax
Fabilitied and the deFared tau o ssels snd deferref ta [labliies relate 10 income takes levied by the sams s authority.

Reconcilation of tax capesse and arcaurting prafi muttipked by income bax rate far Mar 31, 2025 aisd March 31, 2024

As g
Partlculasg March 31, 325 March 31, 2029
Arcauntisg prafit before incame b 117 R¥ 28.9%
Enatid tax rate 1a indh 1.7 26008
Incama tix an accounting profics k[l | 738
Effect ol
Deprecistion 33 per Income Tax Ac) 250 256
Cepreciation as per Companies At [moa)
Expanies not allowable undar ncome Tas 1318 [22.00)
Exgetriany allawadie wnder income Tay a.r?
Hrought ferwerd Iosses adjuited 18T 5]
Lassas carmer forased tn futiee years - T
Tax at effeclive Inceme tax rate Lan .

ARat




5 IC PRIVATE LI
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

|21, SHARE CAPTAL ]

I. Authorized Eare Capltal |Amasint In IME Lakhs )
Bouity Share
Mirslar B i

Ab Parch 31, 3023 L2000, 000 L0300
InsredseiScraain) durng the pear i
Al March 31, 3029 100,00, 000 1,00000
|r-.-r--:|-.-'|':|’-:r—u.|-p.q-|n=_th:-ruu 3 d
A2 areh A1, 2008 t!ﬂlﬂﬁ EE

Termifrght anached t= aqulty shases

Thix covrpainy Bt anky oee chiss of foquity shav hadng parvalss of B9 10 par share. Each heldesal sguliy sharss is enised 1o cne VObi per 5 havw,in the
vunirt of Bguidatice of the comparey the boddam alequiby thares wil be antitied 1o rectn rafmairing avsets of tha compuny, after distrkution of gl
prafanerkial amounts.

The digtitirion will bein croportion te the nember of oguity ithases hsld by ten charcholders

il Issued Capital
(Amaunt I INA Lekhs)
HNumbier Ariesunl

Equity shares of PR 10 each issued, rubrcribed and lully
puiid
Al flmich B, 2025 54,553,000 H5.00
Issued during e periad - -
At March 31, T3y 54,580,003 45,00
sl duiriog the prring - -
A8 Mok 31, 2025 w pLERH

[, Skare huld by holdingtultireate hafding company
Cut ef gguity shares ismed by the Compiery, shares held by |5 holdng company, wdmats Bslding compary are s below:

Ak al I Al a7y
Miarch 31, 2035 | March 31, 20249

Godavari Soreineries Limiled, Bading Comgarny 24,4590 54,49, 004

v, Datally of sharehaldars Beldig more than 515 sharss in the company

Harme af tye sharebholder mnnmalrmu Mﬂ“uh]l,mu
] Huser % hakding Mumbar = halding

Equity shares of I 10 @ach Tulky paid
Godavan Borefineskes Limiad £4 a5,594 10000 | 54490904 10000

w. Details af sharis hedd by promoters in thi Company.

fiama af the sarshoider An 3 March 31, T3 A% ot Parch 31, 2024 Percetngs Chasge
Burher % helding Bl prilig ¥ halding During the Eﬂl-l-tﬁ

Equity shares of BNR 10 each fully paid
Godtrean Blorelinedas [pd, 54.4%,95q 100 545,958 e L
Smmir Tiomayaasa nomirad) Equity mindy wah Godavierd
Alorefiranias Lidg, 1 edihi] 1 (EE 1] .00
Amrifa SSomatylas 2 naminie! iginty with Godaeasi
Eroralineries Lid 1 g i L] 0.0
El Samalkya & Sens Put Led Jis a nomines) juinty with
andwar Blrelinerias Lrd I 000 (] 11 ] il
Somuiyad Agencies Mol Lid [ as anomines) joinck with
Gl Bierafinecing L1d t Lod 1 il iy,
Lakshiminiack Mines B inerals #vi Ltd (a5 & seminee)
|cdrethy with Godavadi Bierefneres Lbd. 1 ong i ann T
Sakaryed| Trading Company e Lic | a2 2 romines) jainty
with Bacavan Diorelineies Lol 1 o) 1 ek 0.00%

595 D0 10000 Sasadan 10068 OL0R




SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FoR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

W Ammtlﬂunhnrqrzqm shiaies breued a5 bonur shon bmued fpr canilderatfon othar than cash nd shares Bawght back during the
period af e yaars huh:d.‘:ul:,- preceding the reportiag daks: ML

{12 DTHER ECUATY |

Reserdes and 5u
Fartieadars ke

fdarch 31, W25
Retaited Exridngs [LEQLSG)
| EESLAn
Hetalned il [Bimasnt InINA Lak
| 1 &xat
&k Maigh 31, 2055
Cipdning balapce [A1s.87)
R Profititas) far 1he pasiad 114,63
A f{Less)

Financal Guamntee haied by SP1PL T

Closing balance

D 13115??]




SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

(13, a0RADWINGS
[Amsaunt kn INR Lakbs)
Azt fui gk
I
Gzl March 31, 2025 | nareh 31, 302
Han Curient Bomowings
Ueriicyred
Loans from Related Partier (Refre note no-21) 356 2500
4] 31.55 2500
Clarrent Borowing:
- Secured Cwerdraftboan fram bank 133.5% "
1% 13158 -
Total {& BE) - 165,15 225,00

Mota;

Untesured Non currant bistrowings fram thie Holding Lomgany it repayabie withina period of fir vaars

and the rate of ihlerest is 7% palPY TH pa)

Curreril Dorrowings B Re 13258 (PY Nil] froes Asis Baok ss on 31,08/ 025

Deverdraft Fromn Axks bank (4, Interest Rate @10% pLalFy Bl

Sacined by way of Exclusive mortgape charge o0 11 acres 37 Evta of land owned by Samaiya Properties
E lwestmants Private LimitediSPEPLY & by weey of Corporaie puarantie by S7PL, T the extest eF fand

magaged bo sooure Chie 0D faclliny,

[zt debt Rocaneliiation

This Sectiansets aut &= aralysis of net debt smd the imevemends In net debt for wath of the perinds specified -

[Amourt im INALakh

LaEdities fram lfnmnciag actkeikins
Partizulars Hom Curent Carrers Tekal
Barmaings Barrowings J.'lnrrnu.:im"
gt et azat March 31, 2023 175400 - 17500
Cashi laflows 403,78 . 40378
Cash Dutflores 353 T7E - 35378
125.00 r I25.00
fetaresl Expene 23,32 . 2302
interest Fald [23.32) - (#3.37]
Met Debtas at March 31, 2924 226,00 a25.00
Cazh Inflows F15.00 13258 348,50
Cash Dutflows a0, 44] {908, 44|
3156 133.58 16504
intgrast Expense 19,51 510 13,81
Tenorasi Baid I%54 3,10 0Bl
Ceher non cash adjutments . . i
Hiet Debkas ak Mareh 1. 2025 3156 133,58 fis.14

The Compaiiy ke not madesny default in repaymant of prircipal and interest 2 81 Dadonce Sheat dete,

lli. GTHER FINANCIAL LIAE|LITIES

As at A gt
it Magch 11, 1025 March 31, hrrd
Currant
Fisgncial Liabilities 91 amorticed et
Cither Payabda s 365 3,23
Tats 3,04 .13




50 AGIC ATE LIMITED

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

|25, PROVISION Hl |
particulars e fane
Mareh 33, 3025 | March 31, 2004
Cwrent
Proviclon for Emalopess benefit
Gratulvy Privision 205 1,56
| . Totel £.09 7.56
[1& TRAGT PAVABLES |
{Bacticatars o ]
fdarch 31, 2025 March 31, 72024
Current
Trade Payables to Micra, Small s Ad=dium Enierprizss
Trada Payables to Aolated Parties [Refur Mote 31) - .
Trade Payakbigs [o Oithers 151.84 11E8E&)
Tatal 151.84 L1186
=—_.|




SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2075

10 Frade Payabsles Apaing Scheckulu are 2z Bl

Dutstaraing froe dus date of payinent as on Mar
Pasticulars Unbikzd . i on 34, s
[[T°8 Upta 1 -3 | Morethan
s Year Yearg | 3 yepes i
Total outstanding dues of mics,small & megium Entesprias . .88 - " £ T8.08]
Tokal putsmniding dues of Credions ther than mior, swal - - 15X 81 a1l - TR
3
Dizputed cuss of micrs, sasll and medum L e g - - - , . F
DEputes d.s5s of rediors other than mios, snall and - . c
Total E {oos | a53ea 0,11 = 15184
P Unkilied - | DUEstanding from dus date of payment a5 on Marcs 31,2024
-1 Upto 3 -3 THorethanal |
Hot Due A ¥ i Total
Tty ouistaraling ouss OF Mécre, Smend B medum Erkeronses - < C - = =
Tolél patstending s of Creckors otfer than mics, snal - 12010 - - [L.48} iian2
i1
5 puted dues of micm, small and medaim enteprises : z = = = E
|Bispuited duas of creditars etrar B mic, sms and = = =
Todal = 1020 - - {1.48) 1i&.42




SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31. 2025
17, OrHER LEABIITIES

As at As 3t
""‘“""’"“ Bhaech 3, | Marchas,
Current
Advancs recehved frien cusomers na .
Seatemany Links ey 0.8 =)
Tokal E?‘F IIE
[1E HEVENUE FROM GRERATIONS |
[Asiscrarat b IR Lakhi]
; Farthe Year] Far e Year
oibinds 1 dhzled
Sale el Traded Goods
Orig Swicen, Fpes 23] E o
Ferillizars 12203 a6E33
Qihary 2535 1101
Saleof Manufschred Gesds - -
Turmesiz Tads 11535
1,304, 55 1,030.93
18, OTHER NCOME ]
| Arscind Is IR Lakhs)
Far the For tha Year
Farticular VAl |
Irefast insome TAEE 5123
Wil tus Income 1.88] N6
Ceher non-ozeraling Incomi 133 138
Frgtiion for Imossiosy Written Beck - a0
Provkian om Deblors Witden Bacs - 1559
Proisian on nfer e Bedaivable Wrices Bace ] 2.1
Trade Papnkls Writhan Back 148 ik
A%27 EX 10
"




SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LI D

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

[20. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED _"_|
{Amaunt in i Ll
Particulars Far i Yisr ended For the Year opded
Fsrch 33, 2025 iWarch 31, 2024
R =i L S
Opaning Stock : 12.52
Add: Furchages Duhng The year L 690
Liass : Closing Stock {1103 -
71335 102.33
(21 PURCHASES GF STOCK IN-TRAGE =]
{Amaunt in IR Lakhs)
Feerr Far the Year ended For the Year ended
e March 31, 2025 Warcs 31, 2524
Purchazes of Stock-In-Tads 1.26%.00 HEE DY
1,265.00 H55.93
{22, CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINSHED GOGOS AND STOCH-IN TRADE
[mount §6 [NA Likhs)
Fir the Tear anded Fof the Year endazd
bl gt March 31, 2025 March 51, 2024
Inventaries a5 at the begnning of the year
Whark = In - process 005 Doz
Bockin trade 23087 10033
Firdshisd goads L2 538
Tatal 13199 105.51
lass ¢ lnventories as at the end of tha yoar
Welork « in - propess OB 005
Sbezk in Eracle 36843 250,03
Firished goods 1183 $:13
Tt 3ELAE 230%5
Rex decreans [ {Incresse} ininventaries [145.35 [35.45)
|L1. EMPLOYEE RINEFITS EXPEMSE |
[ Emoant i WA Lakbe)
Al For the Yar onded Far the Year endad
F il asch 31, 2025 March 31, 2029
Salaries, Wiges ard bonis 33125 =42
Cantribution to provident and other Birds 114 b X0 |
Alkywance for provisian om Gratully 113 .84
3;51 3835
[24. FinanCE cosT )
[Amssunt in INFK Lakhs)
Far the Year ended For tha Yaar snded
[parcuar March 33, 7025 Mearch 31, 3824
nierest Paid 1o Hiddide Company 2163 23.32
ntarest paid on QO 810 .
uaraniee Cesmmisrion Exganss 112 -
bk an Lease Liahibrie E] [u¥ e}
bank Charges A5 038
345K | 3.7




SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

[25. DEPRECIATION AND AMDRTISATION EAFERSE |
[Amourdin MR Lahhs)
Far the Vaar ended Forthe Yeas ended |
o March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Daprecistion an tangibie amsets and RO 2060 3000
20,00 30,00 |
|25 OTHER EXPENSES =
{Amount in INR Lakha}
For the Year anded For the ¥Wiar engagd
Manufacturicg Evpenses
Paweer & Fusf 5.53 .50
Repaing gnd maintenance 145 1.5
Coatract Labpis chargas 13.22 883
Godosn Bant %15 T
Comeyance Expensas 0.6 2 H
Other Charges Tad 259
36.00 2a.ap

selling, Administratian and Other Expenges

Pyments t awditors (Mefere note po 7] L5 1,50
Insuranie o i |
Logal and professicnal fees Lol 3,14
Birectar sitting fees 0.aa 1.1
Rates and tames 159 113
Genaral Expensag 1755 3158
Almanca for doubtiul debts and uther asgar - 014
Mlawance for Excepted credif loss - oGE
Allowance for prodsion an Interese z a5n
Alovesnre for Sacwity depasite . 100
Oiber wiite off 013 (e |
rax 4257
{ Total’ 3.5 TLE7 |
[27. Detaik of Payments to auditors _I
[Amaunt in INR Lakhz]
B rioaias Fot the Year ended For the Year pnded
March 31, 205 Mtarch 31, 2074
A suditer
Audit Feas 1.23 135
T 2l fes L .25
Other senyices -
L.E5Q 1.50




SOLAR MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

MNOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

[12. EARMINGS PER SHARE

{Armawnt im EME Lakhs

Excapt EF5)
Farthe Yeour ended Forihe Yesr erdad
Pariicukirs E 3
Mareh 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024

{2} Basic earsings por share {in NR| 247 053
{5 Duted earnings per share {In INA) 247 (L
(el RezanaTiations of earnings usad in calulasing eaimings per shars
Basic porsdmgi pur charp
Pradit atirbutable o the aquity hodders of the campany used In eafculating 19488 B3
basic aarnings per share
Oiluted eormings per thave
iPrafit atirnitable to the squity holders of the torrpary used i ealodating 134,63 ZB3E

Aepastmants foe calculation of Diluled earnings par-shane: - 3
Pralfit ttributabds to the ageity holder of the tampany usad in caloulasing 114,51 70,93
ddutad enming: per thare
§d) Welghned avarags mumber of shares wisd o5 the denonsator
Wizlghtad everape numbar of equity shares used as the desaminatar i 58,550,000 54,550,000
eMeulating basle garaings per share

Adjustments far calculatiosn of Giluted merings per share: L =
Weighted average number of equity shaser used as the denomidnatar s 54 50,008 54,50,000
calulating tiiuted earnfegs perdhare

Thire hive b2En no Gl franzactions invpheing Equity shares of potential Equity shams hotwesn the reporting dafe ond the dake
ol authorisstion of thess Financisl statements.

[Arseint in 1146 Lotk
|H. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES [

Th= Company doas not have any confingent lisbBties 3nd clsims agatnst Campany which are not ackrewdsdged a5 dubt.



S0LAR MA | LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

[Amaurit § nEHR Lakh)

(38 TRANSITION T WD A5 115

The Company's lsare apiel primarfy ronsist of = boildings fer ofice

Company sdogted Ind A% 116 “Leases” gnd opplies! the standsrd o sl keace esn

and the right of use Dssetat s SRR Bt &5 il the standard had been apphed sings the

bk dscounted ot the Company’s incre mental burroming rake at the dage of inidal g plcation
On trancition, the adeption of the new staniard PESUERD W recognition of Right of e $68 gsat ol 1195 Lakhs, med & inasg

Ezbility of A 1409 Lakfe The comulate effect of applying Uve standard, amourtin
eaminge. Considaring the prahshitsy of wvnbabaity oF Future twvable prafis in tho

as§ets havn Pl been recopnised In respect of tas Inssses carrad farward by the

Thae foodfowing s the sumimary of practicsl expedisnts eeted an nital applisation:
(33 Roplisd 1 sing's discount rate 2 3 portfolio of lemes of similar agsss in SHTEEAT BLOHA
(&) Appaad the sxemdlion nat ta recogrite nghe-of-pse scces and 1iabifties for lepmas

Bhe dede al fnlibal applcation

B B3 BB 2,10 Lakhs was dabited 1 retaired

peviod In which tax losses exprg, d slerred tae

Com paeny,

miE disironment with o shrdar end dajs
wilh [ess them 12 manths of leass tem g

(2] Encladied bha fhtisd dracr egees froem the maasdremont o the right-of-use 24st 2t the date of nitial application

{d} Appfind tha practic? expadient by nol reassessing wisther § CONETICL &, or esntaln

Iestnad appled tve iandards anly o éontrects that wRre previossly ideviified as lesses undar ind 8517

faf aul Below g the carTying srnounts af right-of-use asiets resagrises and the maveEment durhﬂ_ﬂ\c surind:

% & lease ot the date of wikisl & rplicatiag,

Current Leass liahilibies
Ran-cuwrant Leass Linhilites

Asat &5 it
2 st Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 204

Dipmning balases far the yasr 0.op (R T
Tranditian kNpact on scesant claduption of Ind A5 116 “l=gxes” a :
Tatal Right of Liee an the date of trinsition T oin
Al dhddditinrs during the yaar = .33
Less iepregistion of Right of usp assets bt o514
Clazing balance far the yoar LoD 10,00 |
Sef out befow are the Lamying amaunts of leate Rabilides and the movements during the pedad;

Azt TR
e Particulars Wareh 31 3035 arch 11, 302
Dpunfng balanen for the year B o7l
Tm:mmlmctnnamtundnpmn ol ind AS T1E " igde™ B )
A shdditbans dusing the yesr :i
Add :Finance cost accrued during the waar - an
1LE!E Paymand of leasa liabitics - [0.73)
Clasing bafanen for the yoar 5 xon

T mnhurity analyeie of loase Fabilitles o chizclosed jm Mots 34,

hental Repiense recarded far sharl-term feases was R ML) Uskhs © March 3%, 2024 and
Thi Company coses not face o sipnifica liubdityy rick with regard to e lnsse fabiliies

the chdgations related ta lease labiliies a5 and when thay {2l dus.

far the year ended March 21, B03S E ML
B3 el Eurrent fsets ane sulfiier: 10 mis



50 MAGIC PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF MAR 31, 2025

[31i RELATED PARTY TRANSALTIONS =]

(1} List of related parties as por the reguitaments of Ind-A% 24 - Rfatad Parly Bisclasures

Hutniﬂﬂﬁumhl} Mame of Belated Party Tountry of Intorpowition

fList ot ralated parties -

Heldding Company Sedwan Bierafineres Umited |GEL) i
Enterprides ovar which Kay fanagement peronnel  Somaka Prasertios and Invesbistnts Privati mlia
[are abla to exerclce signifcant infkishee Lirnitad
The Boak eéntre Limitsd Ingia
K ¥ Somana & Sons Petled, Tl

Flmaidia Commeunication sysisms Frivite Limied  india

[AEEE] India
Kay Managemant Personml Famir £ Sormulya [Direcior)

Dbarmil Minspam Sheth [Director]

Bhalchandea . Bakihi [Dirnctar]

Karan Harshad Mengar {Rirectar)

Srriskail Mallapna Hekker| Dractor] gt by 31, 2003

Akl Bamiar Agrawal (CoFector| Lpao Moy 13, 2023

Vistrappa Marabur (Cifestor) Wil Nend 90, 2033

l |

W) Frankactions with relited parties

Thie fofceid g Lransaciinas aocurred with related pirties Amsaunt in INB Lakhs
For 3 Yearended  For the Yaar endad
Narie Mature of Trareaction March 21, 2025 Mareh 3L 2004
GO Loar taken fram GEL 149,00 342 00
Livan repasd 1o GAL (40E.£4| (23200
hierzst on Unsacured Lean 1144 .33
Sales [GHL) 80,31 07,53
Purchase [&GHL] 15,84 3,06
ELSAR 53l 453 458
Purchase 1379 .08
Somaiia Propertiss and Rest Paid 2\ 135
fnsestmants Private Limiced
Fmedia Communication Systens  Lapve & Licma 1556 .37
Bet Lrmibiped
Dhasernidl Miregam Shath rectors fees pald .10 Az
KX Sormziya & Sars Pyiled. Rsspnliy aEl DAE
i Uuuhnﬂnl_‘ﬂlam EAFnauint m B0 Lakin)
Far the Yaar ended Forthe Year anded
Pt Barch 31, 2025 Mareh ¥1, 2024
Troale raceivabls
Godavarl BlareFerins Lnisd - 2.08

{i] Loans from mianed paries Ameount in INR; Lakhs)

i Far the Yoo sodad | For the Tear saded
e Rdareh Ei, 2025 March 31, 2029
Gadavarl Borafigney Limiped 31.56 215,00

|
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be] Terms and condfions of trang clions with related parties

The transactians with releted parses are made on Terme equivatent Lo thase tad prevall inain's bength krensactions. Trhere hawe basn ng
grarwntens provided Tor any refated party recelvabiles and payables, For he paried ended 31 Mar 1035, the Comparryg has s recoeded
anyf Imgirment af receivabler roating Ls asount owed by reloted parties . This assessment ks undertakan each fingncal year through
examining e financlal position of the ralated party snd mardket in wiich the refated garty eperates,

L SEGMENT REPORTING =

The: Carrpdey primarily opeaces in one Busisess sepments anly e Triding of geods which is $ only reportsbls Segment, Thera v ng
cthar segment which reguives eporting as pai Bl A 108 “Dperating Segrnents”,
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EH.FAH'H-'I.LH MMEACURERPNTS _:I

L Financisl instrumanis by Categsey [Ame unt is iR Lakha)
Carryim I Amsing | Fair' ¥ alin
Farticutars &5 ar Ao st A at Akt
Masch 31, 2028 | naareh 34,2004 | Marck 31,2085 | March 31, e
== = — e R ]
FINAMCIAL A55ETS
Amortised cosi
Trada Becehabigs 13341 244,73 i 24433
Cashand Cash Equfvalarrs 053 , 514 .53 EERE
Qs Fnancial Arsets G4l 1420 9,42 14.20
Total 261,96 304,54 262,36 304,55
FINANELAL LIABILITIES
Amortised cost
Barowings 165.15 s 145,15 2500
Lirase Lishiities . 3 s -
Frade Payables 15184 1ig.ga 151.84 152
Crtbar financial Fagditias 3,65 3,23 LE5 1,35
Totzl 064 346,85 AT064 346,95

The managament asessed tat the fair walue of cash and cash equbhvalent, trade reenivablies, trade payables, and other corant financizl aeists ard
fiabilities opprimate: their carying amourts largeky die 1o the shoet semm maturitias of these insbraments.

The fair values af nan cuerant borrewings oo based an discounted canh foes using a cafrent borrawing Fabe They are classified ap bavel 3 fair
Witllies in the Fair vales hierarchy due to the we of unesianable InpLs, includimg oen crodr sk,

AL Fadr Valve Measurement

Al ez etz and labiites for which far valyje i

mnazurad or discizied In the fnancial

Lewal 1~ Lawed 1 hicsarchy inchudes lisancial Instrurmgris messaned usng quoted prices,

Lewed 2 - That Fair value of linancial instruments that are not traged in an acthe asken iy decsmminged wsing vakation lechniques shish makirs the

uiE o dbservable market dats aed relyas lirks g possihle an antliy-specfic estimates. If all significang Fpuks rovuired 1o Fair vahie an frsbros) et
are observahle, the Instrament is included in fieml 2.

Lewel 3+ 1f one or mare af the signifiantinouts are astbased on chserdable market data, tha iretrumant i inchidad n bevil 4.
Tres [ the case foe unlsted ocudty shares and assets Mchnded bn fewal 3

Thenr have baun no transfers wmang Leswel |, Level 3 and Level 2 dufing the periad

iil. Walduatios technigue wsed to detarmize f2is ol

Speeilic Yaluation teehmiques uses o valos francial Instrursents ircludn;

*Ehe usa of quoted market prices o dealer guotes Tor simifar lstruments

« the fairwalue of the remaining finanoal insrumants B determingd using discounted cath Aoy analyals

I, Waluntion processes

of wahiatlon proceisss and rocults sre haid bgbwszan the EF G, AC and tha vl uafiar besm regilady i lins with th Comparsy's raporting perinc
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139, FIMANCIAL FESK MANAGEREAT =

The comzary's activty swpase it 1o madket risk, Vquidity risk and credd risk. In orfer 1o minimise any adverse effeets an thip fanchl
Pertormance of the compsey, Thit note omibing the satens of risk which thirenfity 5 exposed to and hesw the enticy manaEes e sk
ard the impact of hedgn actounting in the lnaneial stabomants.

{4} Cradit risk

Credit rizk is the risk that the caunterparty wll not meet its chiligitions lding 10 3 financlad bess, Cradit risk arises from cask apd cash
efuivalents, investmants carisd ap amontifed oot and depocies with banks sed Ermscial Insthuitions, & well as cradit ¥ posies b
custamers including outstanding recesratibeg,

Credit risk management
T masags the creely sk, Company pericdicaily assesses te fnancial Takabiity of customsrs; taking into serount factors sush i cedit

track recard in the market and Fa dezlings with the campany far extension of cendit ta Customar. Campany maritors s paymer
track recovd of the customers, raskrct cradit bmited In &6 snd Tally  credip FEEINE ett. Conceriratines of crag rigk are fimiied a5
result of the company's largs and divares cuctamar base. Corrpary hak oo raken advares and security depssity from e s omary |
gents, which mitigate the crocit risk to in evbent. Ganeraly, tasm depodits sve maintained with banks with which cormpaery bag alsn

Lhquidity rig is the sisk thg a oAy may encounter diffcultiss in meRting its oblipatont siocliod with financial Wabillites that arg
settimd by delivering cazh or oiber finajal 255rt5. The @roup menines rolling fereasis o ity liguidity requirements e ETELFE (E has
sufficlont cashi o newt operaiionsl needs. The wahis betbow provides undiscomtad eash flaws bomards linanchl Nalslities into il
maturity baied an the rerraining perisd & the hidarce thaet 1o the cantractusl rraturinyg date.

Comiractual matusities of financlal abiities (Armauntin INA Lakhs]
Carrying Mo
Fartlzulars AL Total Lass than 1 year 1 ta b years than s
Mar 31, $ias
Homawings 165.1% 18515 133.58 E .
Trade pavabics 15184 15184 1f1.73 o] =
Caher financial lgsoses 365 .65 E S =
Totad Labliites 12064 33064 ZEE 57 Ii.67 .
|March 31, Joza
Sorroaing 12500 225,00 22500 =
Trade pavables 118.62 10862 120,10 (148 i
Dthes Fimancinl Eakiligies 333 123 3.23 - ik
Tatal Liabilitfas 34535 348,85 123,33 11353 £
1] Markiat Fisk

Farkil risk |s the risk that the i vasue of Fubtere cash fows of a financal Intrument will Mucivate bepavae of charge i markes prices,
Marker ik comprises Pres bypas of nise: fareign currency sk, bRerest fale risk and othes prico rig sech s ErETI G By e ek

(i} Intoress rate righ
Inbirast rate risk & the rhk that the Tair vedee of future cath fows of 3 financial irstry st will Muctuate becapgp of tharge In markat
Intergst Fales. The managessen] |5 refpessible far the muonitoring of tha Compsany' Inferest rate Pesition. Vasous variablas arg
cahiidered by the managsment in Flrucotring the Comean's borrawings te schievie 3 ressonakie and urrq:eﬂh:.r:-:m:ﬂl’uruln;

[iii} Imantary grien gk

The Company b cngeged in tading af Agricultural mpuEs viz. maens ANFE) ard miorg | g Tertilizars,

The purthane wad sales prive it contisl undsr <entral Gov, Biip frigatian and it irigation Facilities, Puschased fom Viendar bised an
requirament, price meyr changs basad an demand snd gupply of mw miatireal, The Comgnty manyfsctures and 2B hormaeic Poider,
Raw turmeic poirchass in smasan Feb e June Pawdar i wold tFeaaghaul the yeay, Lompany monitor e furmerk paredir price an

szagoa by,
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3. maTe ARALYSE 200 T COMPOHERTS ;|
Patla
AL
At Mar &% il March Vaslatiea
leri
Er Mo, Fartiea 31, 3935 3L T a4} Reasoas for varhslan
s rrlhy dicresse dup foe s ot s
1 |c 1 n
Ervard ra i LX 1] S (P —— Extibrded By wralor
3 |Ceiri- iy Ratin 1345 il S Due 1o e i e s p el ongl parfoeTnance
3 lﬁ.::llnrﬂnnlﬂh" ARETH 11, bt 245 mwlmnqhhwauﬂ,—,m“,
[ventiry Tumover
# Ratk 451 o) K ]
Tradi Pacelibls
& Tirrizaer Aati 5n 2590 |:|1l
—
Trags Pupille
B T wir ks o an ik
. ;:tcnﬂmumw 2 253 A5 Buw b incngasa In e reveme
b Mot Prodr Batin 9655 PR 1 S0 TEN mtmhmhlmm-ﬂummh“
#eam on Coplal
] F_ w3 11500 25 Dai# bapalk din
Erprd WI -ﬂﬂﬁj pio T e pear J
bt ol Fagls
K3 iz 4
5 M Ratins bummrbar Buwaralnistar i ihehidi
Huturatar | Desomsinaior Humarater | Beramingoas
1 Cuirmal filla Curmeet Spiniy (EmEsE Lshifes LR F Aoy 51270 a0
a Equity Eatia Toral Debiv 16515 T 12510 E18
Total Exuity E
|Ediily Share capiial 4 Other ity
Aarape Toral Eqetty 1353 5613 FTRT FTELD
R an Bty Wt praft after tas [[peniog Erpicy Share capital s Dpaning
i y - Crrer mozitivs Chasing Souisy Share
Fatiz PR R CagitalsCloring
athar Equirp |2
3 limsemiany Turmswer Revernut friom akey of AvEnige Fiendory [opridng hyksess 1,354 55 12 1000 Nnsi
Ratig o oakucin ehaiing halasoe 13}
B |Toads Regetva bl Hiaanu g iy ieveroge Tade raciratle [Opering bafanca LD LR 1143 1, £ R FeEr]
Tameser Falin s + choging balnare 2|
Iy Ry Furchepes tde Wmrage iTaed & pevaliie [Opiesing balusce « Laasad 53 BI5.TE ITETY
Tameyer Ratia inrulh;lheptﬂml vianing Liabasce 42|
L Caskal Tuncrer wamue from Wevling eapinsl (Currant s - cunent 13ba s irae 105585 DT =]
Rt Dectiliom el
E 1H-: Prolt] Batia {use prefit alter tac - Amvenis fram opermticns (EETT T TR T e 108259
Evteptiznal harg
LD |Aewi oa Cipital Prod Sl imeras Rostnl Equity + Total et [nchising 15739 Bfdy 52,10 FTIRER
Ervpbapad Tan & Cope s iinn | el share L)
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:

Amressnd in IR Lakhe
Farticulyrg Pllarch 1 1025 Murch ill.l_l_-ﬂi-l
Farrest | Moo Curremt Teriad Currant Hon Curmrs) | Tom
Gty oz a9 B.0% g T [E]
Total el oyer Benafit OHigatian .10 | 7,08 B, [1E - £.0y |
(il Pest Emnplaygmiges abligasians

#} Defined Besafit plans - Graduity

Ty courp iy prosides foy prabulty dor emokse i o isdia 45 Per the Papeint of Grataity Act, 1972 Employectwhe arein
covitinugus senice fer 0 period of fos years ane elphls for gratuity, The amowr ol EMESURY papabde on retiementy tarninatios
i 1he aimeloyees fast driwn haske salasy Fer month esmpued propartiorately ke 15 days salary medtighind by rumber ol VEarS
of sereice,

Thie grwtarkty plan it o kended plan and the coniparny mikes costeibstions bs racognitad funds in India, The camgany dese
et iy fund the liaklity and muintahns kgt evel of fending 1o ba rmsfniak ed oee 4 periad of Bme bagad an exfimetion:
ol expacied gravedly payerents,

The amount recoprised In the balance shaet ind mobament e tha Bt defined banef obiigatian avar i sericd arg
i Toliorms

[Amiing in [ME Lakiyg)
Pariiculary Fresent value ol Falr valus of plan Mut Enoune
uhm FHETE
s a0 Murch 30,2023 172 - 73
Current mrvice cost nE3 - oE3
Part Sevvice Cost -fueried baufit) = '
lstminit sepensef{insamsa) 0ia - ain
Adlfestmant v Opmning Fair Value of Pian Asse 4 =
Tatal arvsnind reccgrise d in profit or loss [iCE] " oEs
Famvrainremants
Feaburn o2 plan ausets, #4ebiding amount lnchyded i leagremt . - =
Eaimi Lo feoen change In financil ssswaptioes 17E - AT
Evpsay i [gilnsosses i ] " 026
Tatdl amaunt ricopeised in etder ecnprehesshs Insomas a8 . 401
Employar esntribations ; . =
Hinaiil pryrnanei . ' .
Ak Maech 31,3910 [ 758 - 155 |
Current paryios comt 151 - i1
Fart Servic Covt 4vesied bansfiedg 3 5
Iru-rnrqlptm-r.l'llrrr.m| 0.54 - [ ¥}
Adpusirmas o D niegg Fair wWaluo of Mlan Az - -
Total armsumE recognlied in profs or kes .05 - 1]
Rerpasuraments
Maturn af plan sasety, macluding serours inckaded in inberasi - " »
AGain|/Lans fram dhange in Bnarcial mdumptioas .36 . 0.6
Exprrience [gainilfosses 11—'-‘311 - 117%]
Tt afmaunt recopesied in sther e ke ndve icme [1.52) ' [1.£2}
Emploper eontrbesions = . &
Benefil paymenis e . .
#is an Marsh 31,3005 Bra - 708
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Thene liabfiky dlaciased abeve ralates 5= landed ared wn e £ pia il e a5 Podlav:

[Amiun in 1NN Laki)

Mr.uhu mr:h.'hég_g_ Bk %1, 0004

Frasint value of funded chigations {4 ] T=E
Faiir wikaz of plan amse a i
Befict of banded plan BO% 756
Waliindad plans - =
Ereficit of granusty glan B.08 7.5 |

Tha significant sciuscial assumpibom were 35 fobvas:

Partioglars feards 3, 2045 Barch 312004
Wortmlity 1A EORaf e | Ll {2002 50 ws.
meznesty Discours Rapa EO1% T.0ak
Rsiw ol Miveids n Campenation B/ B
Exgwcled pvrragh ramaining soniice ILE] il I
Patfrement age £ Waare 50 Years
Empiynps Attvition Rase Ager Db 45 ; 5 Apa-OnA5) B

AQEAEIn G0N | Ape:dGnaBo; iy

A quantEatiee seanitty anakyiis for lpeilicost seremption as 5t Ma 34, BEES | shown belov:

[Amount m R Lakchs}

Apamptions Dicoamit rate Salary asealadiom ke

Larultaaly Lewpl 1% boresse) 18 cwcreans 1% ncraane 1% decrodin

Rrares 31, 208

fmgsct an defined baneds obligazian E7E Il ] ey 673

% Imenaer Faysel 123 ml 11080% L1
Pdarch 31 2003&

kgt o defined banafit abligaion 530 014 4.1a [

% Impact 3. 1% 1 89% 1 F 11 ﬂ

Thai sarieEssty analysis abews have been delsnnined batad an o methiod (ke st rapadanes the impao da defined
benndit chlgacion an & sewit of reaeratie change in by aznpmpticdnl o roiring at the snd o the repnrieg perisd.

Thi geryrentsclf mne:rntrrtrrhu:lmuwlhrdﬂnﬁmmlﬂnummrmn.uﬁ Itarch X0, 2024 4|

u 3B Addivonad dichsures not appleabl tethe Oy 1 |

| Disglnure where a campany a doclaed wilda detauke by any hanik or finemclal s,
B Relatioeshin with Sneck off Companies.
) Dataiti ol transaction met sasorded in tha becks tha: hat biesn csrrend s or disclon g4
Incamss in e L assasumenis.

ol Dietaity of L yeto Curraney v Virtual Curesoy,

) Data ik of Benami Fropercty held,

M Earmgiance with number of lzies of sampanie,

gl Complancs with approved Sthermefs) of Arangements.

i Fanding repstratioe of tharges or catklason nf charges wih Bepistrae of Companies,
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(29, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Far the puipase af thes Campank's cagital managemens, eapltel inchudey Insud =quiTy capital, share pramium and all ather PLPUTY resiryms
attributabde to the aquity holders of e parent. The prirmery oblestive of the C Pesy's cagital Muragemant iy o Mmaximise the
sharehalder vaiua,

[Amount ry INR Lakhis)
1 AF it Aot
Parialars
March31, 2mas March 13, 2034
Borreradngs IEEQS 500
Tradn payablac 151.84 118.6%
Oitfvar financil abifities 585 333
[Lessi cashand cash equivalenis [2.53] ] {45 1)
Nat Dkt 3111 Fo0.71
Equity Share cagizal S5O0 545,04
Ceher Eguity [2BC. 90 tgu‘.j:-]_l
Total Cepitad 35810 228,11
Caphtal and ek dabar BT6.21 !Em
Geaning ralio db.0a SEBE

[45. DETAILS OF DuES TGO MICRD AN SMALL ERTERPRISES A5 DEFINED UMDER MICRD, SRAALL AND MEDILIM ENTEAPRISE]

[Amawnt in & Lakhs)
Particulars MER 31,3025 Masch 31, 1024 E|

Prindipl amount due to suppliers wedar MSMED Ati, J005" : E
Inberest acerued and dus b supabers under S5 MED Act, o iha ahove . :
Fatmest made o supphias | athier than intarest § beyosd the : .
Interest pa to suppliers undor MSAMED Act, [ ather tham Section 16 3 X
Inmévest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, [ Section 15 | .

[neerest due and paysbie tn susplisrs undsr MEMED A, T papmiant already mada -

Interest acraed and ramaining ynpasd a2 fhe gnd o the year lo suppliars uncler MSMED . -
Azt 3006

ALBalances of certain rade roceivables caersin tracle payables and cortain ather security dapesics ark Subject canfrvation and
recorgiliation (if aeg)

#1 (i} Ho funds have bean sevanced ¢ lvaned { invested [fram borrowed fursds or frore share firemiuss ar
fram any ather sources f king of furids) By Lhe Company ta any other persan(s] GrentEylizs), including dorsign



). Mo funds have been received by the Campany fram ary persanis] or entityiies], including foreign entitles
(Furiding Parties), with the urderatanding [whether recardad i/ writing or atherwise) that tha Campany shall
(1] directty. or ndirectiy, lend or invest in other persans ar anities ientified inany manner whatsoayer by or
on behalf of the Fundng Party (Uttimate Benefickaries] or (i} provde any guarsnees, segarity or the like on
befall of the Ultimate Baneficiaries,

A43.The Companty does not have any contingent Bability and clgims against the Company rat acknoledged as a dobt

4. Pravious year's figures ase regrouped and reclassified wherever aaplicabis to mak them comparable with cumrent vears
classification,

s per owr report of even date attached —
For DESAI SAKSENA & ASSOCIATES For and ca behalf of the Board o Directors
ariered ACcouniants

m Registration Number 102358W W
- :

K Sakiseng i Bhalachandry Baksh Karan M ongar
Partner i Director
Mesrbernhip No. 035170 : (DEN £ 03538588) (MM DB 7EGRGE)
Place - Mumbal : Place : Mumbai

Diater ¢ 13,/05,/2025 Diate | 13,05, 3005
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Laan van 's-Gravenmade 74
2455 Al Den Haag
a70-2192770

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT KvK Den Haag 77036134
BTW nr. NL B60898738801

To: The shareholders of Cayuga Investment B.V.

A. Report on the audit of the financial statements 2024 - 2025 included in the annual report

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements for the period ended 31st March
2025 of Cayuga Investment B.V. based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Cayuga Investment B.V. for the period ended 31st March 2025 and of its result for the
period 1st April 2024 up to and including 31st March 2025 in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:

® the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025;

® the profit and loss account for the period 1st April 2024 up to and including 31* March
2025 and

® the notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory

information.
Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report.

We are independent of Cayuga Investment B.V. in accordance with the “Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten” (ViO, Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant
independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the
“Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants” (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

Audit approach to fraud risks

The level of detail that must be provided in the auditor's report to describe how fraud risks that

may lead to material misstatement have been addressed during the audit is a matter
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of professional judgment and is adapted to the specific circumstances and complexity of the audit.

In accordance with paragraph 29B of SA 700, the auditor can describe:

® the risks of fraud that required attention during the audit.
® areference to any disclosures in the financial statements.
® a brief overview of the work carried.

® anindication of the outcome of the auditot's work.

® important observations regarding the matter.
Or a combination of these elements.

We believe the audit evidence for fraud risks we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
Audit approach going concern

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern assumption.
The appropriateness of this assumption depends on management's estimate of future cash flows.

The Board of Directors has drawn up the financial statements based on the going concern
assumption of all the activities for the period of 12 months from the date of the preparation of

the annual accounts. Our work to evaluate the management’s going concern assessment includes:

* Consider whether the management's going concern assessment contains all relevant information
of which we have knowledge as a result of our audit of the financial statements and make inquiries

with the board about the most important assumptions and considerations;

* Verify that management has not identified any events or circumstances that may cast reasonable

doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern (hereinafter: going concern risks);

* Evaluate the operating results forecast and the related cash flows compared to the previous
financial year, developments in the business and any information of which we are aware as a result

of our audit;

* Analyse whether the current and the necessary financing for the continuation of the entire

business activities is guaranteed; and

* Inquiries with the management about its knowledge of going concern risks after the period of

the going concern assessment carried out by management.

The outcome of our risk assessment procedures did not give reason to perform additional audit
procedures on management’s going concern assessment. However, future events or conditions

may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Other matter paragraph
This auditor’s report is intended solely for Cayuga Investment B.V. and their shareholders.
B. Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains
other information that consists of:

® other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code;

We were engaged to read the other information and, based on our knowledge and understanding
to be obtained through our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, to consider whether the
other information contains material misstatements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the
management report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other
information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720.

C. Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements
Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, the
management is responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework
mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or

has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the

company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.
Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on conducting the
audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain

sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion. Our audit has been performed according
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to the Dutch Auditing Standards with a high level of assurance. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the

evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion. We have exercised professional

judgement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout the audit, in accordance with

Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements.

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional scepticism

throughout the audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and

independence requirements. Our audit included among others:

identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control ;

obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control;

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

concluding on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditot's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements of, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditot's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures; and

evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The Hague, 15" May 2025

TAC Audit & Assurance B.V.

Lo

drs. S. Ramdas RA

Initials for authentication purposes: S.R.
=
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Balance sheet as at 31% March 2025

(Before profit appropriation)

Fixed assets
Financial fixed assets

Participation interest in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and accrued income
Loan to group companies
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Short-term liabilities and accrued liabilities

Balance of current assetsless short-term liabilities

Balance of assetsless short-term liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Issued and paid up capital
Other reserves
Result for the period

Total shareholder's equity

Cayuga InvestmentsB.V.,
Amsterdam

Notes 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
EUR EUR
1
1,339,202 1,339,202
1,339,202 1,339,202
2
2,269 2,269
93,698 101,016
52,733 34,496
148,700 137,781
3 2,420 2,382
146,280 135,399
1,485,482 1,474,601
4
1,394,761 1,394,761
79,840 73,271
10,881 6,569
1,485,482 1,474,601

SR



Profit and loss account for the period 1% April to 31% March 2025

Notes Apr 2024 to Apr 2023 to
Mar 2025 Mar 2024
EUR EUR

Operating expenses
General and administrative expenses 5 (11,805) (9,043)
Total operating result (11,805) (9,043)
Financial income and expenses 6
Interest income or similar income 5,279 5,612
Financial result 5,279 5,612
Result befor e taxation (6,526) (3,431
Corporate income tax - -
Result after taxation (6,526) (3,431)
Results from subsidiaries 7 17,407 10,000
Net result for the period 10,881 6,569

Cayuga InvestmentsB.V.,
Amsterdam

SR



Notesto thefinancial statements

General Information

The Company is a private company with limited liability, incorporated under the laws of The Netherlands on 10 December
2008, having its corporate seat in Amsterdam, with office at Opaallaan 1180, 2132LN Hoofddorp, (The Netherlands).

Activities of the Company are participating in, managing and financing of companies operating in the area of trade in chemicals,
alcohol, sugar and related products as well as holding and financing company.

The Company is wholly owned by Godavari Biorefineries Limited, India.

In view of the fact that the Company's activities are denominated primarily in Euro, thus annual accounts are prepared in Euro,
the Company’s functional currency.

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which is the basis for valuation and determination of
results and assumes that the Company will be able to redlize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

The equity of the Company amounted to Euro 1,485,482.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying accounts have been prepared in accordance with EU-directives as implemented in Title 9, Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code and the firm pronouncements in the Guidelines for Annual Reporting in the Netherlands as issued by the
Dutch Accounting Standards Board.

Consolidation

The financia statements of the Company are not consolidated with those of its wholly owned subsidiaries as a result of the
Article 408 exemption. The consolidated annual accounts of Godavari Biorefineries Ltd. having its statutory seat in India, in
which the annual accounts of the Company together with its wholly owned subsidiaries are included, will be filed with the
Chamber of Commerce in Amsterdam.

Financial instruments

Our policy is to manage the risks we are exposed to, including, but not limited to the market risk (including currency risk, fair
value, interest and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Our strategy is to systematically monitor
and understand the impact of changing market conditions on our result and cash flow and to initiate preventive actions when
required.

- Interest raterisk

The long term receivables and loans from the Company have floating as well fixed interest rates which the Company runs risk
on. The risk related to the floating rate result in a fluctuated interest cash flow and the risk related to the fixed rates result in
fluctuated market values of the applicable loans.

- Foreign currency exchange risk

The Company is exposed to the risk that the exchange rate of its functional currency Euro relates to foreign currency may
change in amanner that has asignificant effect on the expenses and gains of the Company.

General accounting principlesfor the preparation of the financial statements

Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the statutory provisions of Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code and the firm pronouncements in the Guidelines for Annual Reporting in the Netherlands as issued by the Dutch
Accounting Standards Board.

Vauation of assets and liabilities and determination of the result takes place under the historical cost convention. Unless
presented otherwise, the relevant principle for the specific balance sheet item, assets and liabilities are presented at face value.

(7

Income and expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

Cayuga InvestmentsB.V.,
Amsterdam



Notesto the financial statements (continued)

Financial assets
The company applies for article 2:408 of the Netherlands Civil Code and makes use of the option to value its participations in
group companies at cost, or lower market value.

Participations in group companies are minimally stated at zero unless the Company is fully or partialy liable for the debts of
the group companies, or has the firm intention to pay theses debts. In that case, a provision is formed.

Receivables from group companies
Loans and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. When aloan or
receivable is considered uncollectible, it iswritten off against the allowance account for receivables.

Receivables

Receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at revalued figure. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for receivables. If payment of the receivable is
postponed under an extended payment deadline, fair value is measured on the basis of the discounted value of the expected
revenues. Interest gains are recognised using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, bank balances, remittance in transit and deposits. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowingsin current liabilities on the balance sheet. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at nominal value.

Shar eholder s’ equity

Financial instruments that are designated as equity instruments by virtue of the economic reality are presented under
shareholders' equity. Payments to holders of these instruments are deducted from the sharehol der's equity as a part of the profit
distribution.

Equity share capital consist of ordinary shares.

Financial instruments that are designated as a financial liability by virtue of the economic reality are presented under
liahilities. Interest, dividends, income and expenditure with respect to these financial instruments are recognized in the profit
and loss as financial income or expense.

Longterm liabilities

Long-term liabilities are long-term financial obligations listed on a company’s balance sheet, that are not due for settlement
within one year after balance sheet date. Initially, financial liabilities are recognized at fair value. Subsequently measured at
amortized cost.

Short term liabilities
Short-term liabilities, are short-term financial obligations listed on a company’s balance sheet that are due for settlement
within one year after balance sheet date. Financial liabilities are recognized at fair value.

Accounts payable
All amounts payable are stated at nominal value and are expected to be paid within one year after the balance sheet date.

Cayuga InvestmentsB.V.,
Amsterdam

SR



Notesto the financial statements (continued)

Trandation of foreign currencies
The functional and reporting currency of the Company is Euro.

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been converted into EUR at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, where as non-monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies are trandated at
historical rate when the transaction took place. All transactions denominated in foreign currency made during the year under
review are accounted for at the officia rate of exchange prevailing on or around the date of the transaction took place. Foreign
exchange gains and losses arising as a result of the application of the above accounting policies are disclosed separately in the
profit and loss account.

Related party transactions
An entity is considered arelated party if any of the following conditions prevail:

- The financial and operating activities are controlled by the Company or are controlled by the same party, which includes
common control, joint control or significant influence.

- The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary isrelated to the others).

Transaction with related parties were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transaction.

Provisions
Provisions are formed for liabilities which are deemed probable or certain at the balance sheet date, but which are till
unknown as to the amount or timing of outflow of funds.

Principlesfor the determination of the result

General
Profit or loss is determined as the difference between the realisable value of the goods delivered and services rendered, and
the costs and other charges for the year. Revenues on transactions are recognised in the year in which they are realised.

Interest income and expenditure

Interest paid and received is recognised on atime-weighted basis, taking account of the effective interest rate of the assets and
liahilities concerned. When recognising interest paid, allowance is made for transaction costs on loans received as part of the
calculation of effective interest.

Operating costs
Costs are attributed to the financial year to which they relate. Profits are accounted for in the year in which goods have been
provided or services have been performed. Losses are assumed in the year in which these are foreseeable.

Sharein result of participations

For participations valued at cost, the result on participating interests sold during the financial year are accounted for in the
profit and loss as income. Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the same is declared by the participating
company.

Taxation

Corporate income tax comprises the current and deferred corporate income tax payable and deductible for the reporting
period. Corporate income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly to equity, in which caseit is recognised in equity.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for the financial year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

(7
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Notesto the financial statements (continued)

1. Financial fixed assets

Participations
Godavari Biorefineries B.V.

Godavari Biorefineries Inc.

Movementsin the participationsin Subsidiaries are asfollows:

Godavari Biorefineries B.V. Amsterdam

Balance asat 1 April 2024
Additions

Reverse provisions

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Godavari Biorefineries Inc. Delaware

Balanceasat 1 April 2024
Additions

Reverse provisions

Balance as at 31 March 2025

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
EUR EUR
1,227,761 1,227,761
111,441 111,441
1,339,202 1,339,202
1,227,761 1,227,761
1,227,761 1,227,761
111,441 111,441
111,441 111,441

In accordance with article 408 of Dutch Civil Code, investments are valued at cost. When a permanent impairment in value
occurs in the investments, the carrying amount is written down to its estimated recoverable amount, but not |ess than zero.

Cayuga Investments B.V. has direct interests in the following subsidiaries:

Name Registered office
Godavari Biorefineries B.V. Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Godavari Biorefineries Inc. Delaware, USA

Cayuga InvestmentsB.V.,
Amsterdam

Net equity

1,710,686
554,685

Net result

54,499
48,548

SR



Notesto the financial statements (continued)

2. Current assets

2.1 Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income
Prepaid expenses

2.2 Loan to Group Companies
Loan to Godavari Biorefineries B.V.
Interest receivable from Godavari Biorefineries B.V

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
EUR EUR
2,269 2,269
2,269 2,269
79,995 91,762
13,703 9,254
93,698 101,016

During the year 2021-22, the Company granted a loan of € 131,400 to Godavari Biorefineries B.V bearing interest at 1.5% +

3 Months EURIBOR p.a. The loan is given on 26 August 2021.

2.3 Cash and cash equivalents
Wise (EUR)
Wise (USD)

3. Short-term liabilities and accrued liabilities
Other debts, accruals and deferred income

4. Shareholder's equity
(Euro)

Balanceasat 1 April 2023
Result for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Balanceasat 1 April 2024
Result for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2025

34,954 24,496
17,778 10,000
52,733 34,496
2,420 2,382
2,420 2,382

Share capital Other Total

reserves

1,394,761 73,271 1,468,032
- 6,569 6,569
1,394,761 79,840 1,474,601
1,394,761 79,840 1,474,601
- 10,881 10,881
1,394,761 90,721 1,485,482

The authorised share capital of Cayuga Investments B.V. amounted to € 2,225,000, divided into 2,225,000 ordinary shares of
€ 1 each. Of these, 1,394,761 ordinary shares have been issued and paid up.

Cayuga InvestmentsB.V.,
Amsterdam

(7
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Notesto the financial statements (continued)

5. General and administrative expenses
Audit fees

Insurance cost

Professional fees

6. Financial income and (expenses)
Interest on loan

Interest & Bank charges

Foreign exchange differences

7. Resultsfrom subsidiaries
Dividend income

8. Average number of employees

2024-25 2023-24
EUR EUR

(6,360) (2,443)
(5,445) (5,445)
- (1,155)
(11,805) (9,043)
4,450 5,274
671 338

158 -
5,279 5612
17,407 10,000
17,407 10,000

The Company has no employees during the period under review, hence incurred no salaries, wages and/or related social

security charges.

9. Events after the balance sheet date

No events were noted after the reporting date that would require disclosures or adjustments to the financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2025.

nime Rt 1t May ai2s

S.S. Somaiya
(Director A)

A.E. Sturm
(Director B)

Cayuga InvestmentsB.V.,
Amsterdam

S.G. Reindl
(Director A)

P. Mistry
(Director B)

SR
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Other Information

Profit appropriation according to the Articles of Association
Based on the Company's articles of association, the result of the Company is at disposal of the general meeting of
sharehol ders.

Proposed profit appropriation
The profit for the year 2024-25 has been included under result for the period in shareholder's equity. The result for the year
2023-24 has been appropriated in the retained earnings.

Auditor'sreport
Based on article 2:396 section 6 of the Dutch Civil Code, the company is exempt from the obligation to have the annual
accounts audited. However, the Company has get its accounts audited voluntarily.

Cayuga InvestmentsB.V.,
Amsterdam

SR
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Laan van 's-Gravenmade 74

2455 Al Den Haag
O70-2193770

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT KvK Den Haag 77036134
BTW nr. NL B60898738801

To: The shareholders of Godavari Biorefineries B.V.

A. Report on the audit of the financial statements 2024 - 2025 included in the annual report

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements for the period ended 31st March
2025 of Godavari Biorefineries B.V. based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Godavari Biorefineries B.V. for the period ended 31st March 2025 and of its result
for the period 1st April 2024 up to and including 31st March 2025 in accordance with Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:

® the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025;

® the profit and loss account for the period 1st April 2024 up to and including 31* March
2025 and

® the notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory

information.
Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report.

We are independent of Godavari Biorefineries B.V. in accordance with the “Verordening inzake
de onathankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten” (ViO, Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant
independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the
“Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants” (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

Audit approach to fraud risks

The level of detail that must be provided in the auditor's report to describe how fraud risks that

may lead to material misstatement have been addressed during the audit is a matter
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of professional judgment and is adapted to the specific circumstances and complexity of the audit.

In accordance with paragraph 29B of SA 700, the auditor can describe:

® the risks of fraud that required attention during the audit.
® areference to any disclosures in the financial statements.
® a brief overview of the work carried.

® anindication of the outcome of the auditot's work.

® important observations regarding the matter.
Or a combination of these elements.

We believe the audit evidence for fraud risks we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
Audit approach going concern

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern assumption.
The appropriateness of this assumption depends on management's estimate of future cash flows.

The Board of Directors has drawn up the financial statements based on the going concern
assumption of all the activities for the period of 12 months from the date of the preparation of

the annual accounts. Our work to evaluate the management’s going concern assessment includes:

* Consider whether the management's going concern assessment contains all relevant information
of which we have knowledge as a result of our audit of the financial statements and make inquiries

with the board about the most important assumptions and considerations;

* Verify that management has not identified any events or circumstances that may cast reasonable

doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern (hereinafter: going concern risks);

* Evaluate the operating results forecast and the related cash flows compared to the previous
financial year, developments in the business and any information of which we are aware as a result

of our audit;

* Analyse whether the current and the necessary financing for the continuation of the entire

business activities is guaranteed; and

* Inquiries with the management about its knowledge of going concern risks after the period of

the going concern assessment carried out by management.

The outcome of our risk assessment procedures did not give reason to perform additional audit
procedures on management’s going concern assessment. However, future events or conditions

may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Other matter paragraph
This auditor’s report is intended solely for Godavari Biorefineries B.V. and their shareholders.
B. Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains
other information that consists of:

® other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code;

We were engaged to read the other information and, based on our knowledge and understanding
to be obtained through our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, to consider whether the
other information contains material misstatements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the
management report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other
information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720.

C. Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements
Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, the
management is responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework
mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or

has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the

company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.
Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on conducting the
audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain

sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion. Our audit has been performed according
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to the Dutch Auditing Standards with a high level of assurance. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the

evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion. We have exercised professional

judgement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout the audit, in accordance with

Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements.

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional scepticism

throughout the audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and

independence requirements. Our audit included among others:

identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control ;

obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control;

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

concluding on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditot's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements of, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditot's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures; and

evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The Hague, 15" May 2025

TAC Audit & Assurance B.V.

e
drs. S. Ramdas RA

Initials for authentication purposes: S.R.
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Balance Sheet as at 31*° March 2025

{Before appropriation of results)

Current asscts

Inventory
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term liabilities and acerued liabilities

Balance of current assets less short-term liabilities

Balance of assets less short-term liabilities

Sharcholders' equity

Issued & paid up capital
Share premium
Retained carnings
Result for the period

Total Shareholders' equity

Godavari Biorefineries B.V.,
Hoofddorp, The Netherlands

Notes

L

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
EUR EUR
343,677 210,654
1,459.227 1,200,443
610,683 559,112
2,413,587 1.970.200
702,901 314,022
1,710,686 1,656,187
1,710,686 1,656,187
G
1.217.761 1,217,761
9999 9,999
428,427 262,503
54,499 165,924
1,710,686 1.656,187
1,710,686 1,656,187
R




Profit and Loss account for the year 1" April 2024 to 31" March 2025

Revenue

Costs of goods
General and administrative expenses
Employment costs

Operating result

Finance income/ (costs)
Result before taxes

Taxation on result

Result after taxes

Godavari Biorcfineries B.V,
Hoofddorp, The Netherlands

1

11

2024-25 2023-24
EUR EUR

5,798,840 4,594,722
(5,276,897) (4,067,508)
(158,120) (96.275)
(286.815) (222,262)
77.008 208,677
(9,726) (10,073)
67.282 198,604
(12.784) (32,680}
54,499 165,924



Notes to the financial statements

1 General

L1 Operations

Godavari Biorefineries BV is a Dutch private company with limited liability incomorated on Jan 26, 2000
and has its statutory seat in Amsterdam. the Netherlands. The operations of the Company mainly comprised
of commissions in the field of chemicals, alcohol. sugar and sugar products, agro products and related heavy
chemicals, organic, bio-chemical and bio-technical products. The Company issues commission invoices to
Godavari Biorefinerics Lid (ultimate parent company) for sales done by the ultimate parent company. The
ultimate parent company is Godavari biorefineries Limited located in Mumbai, India.

1.2 Changes in accounting policies
There are no change in accounting policies during the vear April 2024 to March 2025,

1.3 Related-party transactions

All Tegal entitics that can be controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced are considered to be a
related party. Also. entities which can control the Company are considered as a related party. In addition,
statutory dircctors. other key management of Godavari Biorefineries B.V. and close relatives are regarded as
related parties.

Significant transactions with related parties are disclosed in the notes insofar as they are not transacted under
normal market conditions. The nature, extent and other information is disclosed if this is required for to
provide the true and fair view,

1.4 Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which is the basis for valuation and
determination of results and assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The equity of the Company amounted to EUR 1,710.686.

2 Accounting policies for the balance sheet

2.1 General information

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the statutory provisions of Part 9, Book 2, of
the Dutch Civil Code and the Guidelines for Annual Reporting In the Netherlands for small legal entities as
issucd by the Dutch Accounting Standards Board.

In general, assets and liabilities arc stated at the amounts at which they were acquired or incurred, or lower
realizable value. If not specifically stated otherwise, they are recognized at the amounts at which they were
acquired or incurred. The balance sheet and income statement include references to the notes.

Godavari Biorefineries B.V.

Hoofddorp, The Netherlands 5
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Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

2 Accounting policies for the balance sheet (continued...)

2.2 Foreign currencies

Functional currency
The financial stalements are presented in curos, which is the functional and presentation currency of Godavar Biorefineries
B.V.

Transactions, recelvables and debity
Forcign currency transactions in the sepocting period are transiased into the functionsl currency wsing the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and lizbilities denominated in foreign currencies are translased into the functional currency ot the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date Foreign exchange mins and losses resulting from the settfement of suck
transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates are recognized in the Profit and Loss account,

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Fumiture and fixtures are valued at hiscorical cost, less strught-line depreciation over their estimated useful lives and
Impairment losses,

2.4 Recelvables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at falr value and subsequently measured at revalved figures. If payment of the
receivable is postponed under an extended payment deadline, fair value is measured on the basis of the discounted value of
the expected revenues. [nterest gains are recognized using the effective interest method. A provision is raised when & trade
receivable is considered uncollectable. It is writton off against the allowance account for trade receivables.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances and deposits held at call with maturities of Jess than 12
months. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilitics on the balance shaet. Cash and cash equivalents are
stated ot face value.

2,6 Inventories

Raw materials and consumables are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable vahse

Inventories of finished or partially finished goods are stated ot the lower of manuficturlng price and net realizable value,
Manufacturing price comprises all purchase or conversion cests. and other costs incurred in bringing the Inventories to their
present location and condition. Conversion cost includes direct labour costs and mark-ups for fixed and variable production
overheads, including costs of the production planaing department, maintenance division and internal logistics.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coarse of basiness, less applicable variahle selling expenses.
Net realizable value is determined making allowance for obsolescence of inventories.

Inventory in transit can be specified as material ordered and shipped but not yet received by Godavari Biorefineries B.V. in
the port of The Netherlands.

Godavari Biorefineries BV, @
Hoofddorp, The Netherlands 6 S.R.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

3 Accounting policies for the income statement

3.1 General information

Profit or loss is determined as the difference between the reliazable value of the goods delivered and services rendered,
and the cost and other charges for the year. Revenues on transactions are recognised in the year in which they are
reliazed.

3.2 Revenue recognition

Sale of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when all significant risk and rewards incidental 1o the ownership of the goods
have been transferred to the buyer.

Sale of services
Revenue from sale of servicss is recognised under the percentage of completion method based on the services performed
to the balance sheet date as a percentage of the total services to be performed.

3.3 Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising upon the scttlement or conversion of monetary items are recognised in the profit and loss
account in the period that they arise.

34 General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses comprrise costs chargeable to the year that are not directly attributable to the cost of
the goods sold.

3.5 Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are deprecisted over their estimated useful lives as from the inception of their use. Land
and investment property are not depreciated. Future depreciation and amortisation is adjusted if there is a change in
estimated future useful life,

Gains and losses on sales of property, plant and equipment are included in profit and loss sccount.

3.6 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and soclal security contributions are tzken to the profit and loss account based on the terms of
employment, where they are due to employees,

3.7 Finance income and costs

Interest paid and received
Interest paid and received is recognized on 8 time-weighted basis, taking account of the effective mterest rate of the
assets and liabilities concerned.

3.8 Income tax expense

Income tax is calculated on the profit/loss before tax in the profit and loss account, taking into account anv losses carried
forward from previous financial vears, tax-exempt items and nor-deductible expenses.

Godavari Biorefineries B.V.

Hoofddorp, The Netherlands . @ SR G::
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Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

4 Financial instruments and risk management

4.1 Price risk

Currency risk

Godavari Biorefineries B.V. mainly operates in the Furopean Union. The currency risk for Godavari
Biorefineries B.V. largely concerns positions and future transactions in US dollars. Management has
determined, based on a risk assessment, that these currency risks need net to be hedged.

Interest rate and cash flow risk
Godavari Biorefineries B.V. incurs interest rate risk on receivables. cash and current liabilities.

4.2 Credit risk

Godavari Biorefineries B.V does not have any significant concentrations of credit risk. Sales are made to
customers that meet the Company's credit rating. Goods and services are sold Subject to payment deadlines
ranging between cight and 30 days. A different payment period may apply to major supplies (90 days). in
which case additional securities are demanded, including guarantees,

4.3 Liquidity risk

Godavari Biorefineries B.V uses several banks in order 1o avail itself of a range of overdraft facilities.
Where necessary, further securities will be furnished to the bank for available overdraft facilities.

Godavari Biorefineries B.V.

Hoofddorp, The Netherlands 8 SR @



Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024

Kuro Euro
1 Inventory
Goods in transit 255.109 60,480
Inventory 88,568 150,174
343,677 210,654
—— _
2 Receivables
Trade receivables 1,245,650 1,167,216
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income 213,577 33,227
1,459,227 1,200,443
1 hasmmmmeeee
All reccivables fall due in less than one year. The fair value of the receivables approximates the book
value.
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income
Advance Corporate Income Tax 15,250 2.843
Advance paid to supplier 147,164 4.146
Other receivables 4,217 511
Prepayments and accrued income 33221 21,354
Security deposits 1.029 1,029
VAT receivable 12,687 3,344
213,577 33,227
3 Cash and cash equivalents
Rabo bank EUR 319,360 490,095
Rabo bank USD 291,323 37,849
Cheque in transit - 31,168
610,683 559,112

All bank balances are at the Company’s free disposal,

Godavari Biorefineries B.V. @ G
S.R.

Hoofddorp, The Netherlands 9



Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

4 Current liabilities 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Euro Euro
Advance from customer 17,309 -
Trade payables SI8.876 169,291
Current account- Prajesh Mistry 502 -
Payrol] liabilities 29358 21,621
Other debts and accruals 43,158 22,004
Loan from Cayugn Investments 79.995 91,762
Interest en loan from Cayuga 13,703 9,254
702,901 314022

All current liabilities fall duc in less than one year. The fair value of the current liabilities approximates the book value
due 1o its short-term character.

During the year 2021-22, the Company took a loan of € 131,400 from Cayuga Investments B.V bearing interest at 1.5%
+3 Months EURIBOR p.a. The loan taken on 26 August 2021 is due to be repaid on 25 August 2025

§ Sharcholders' equity

The share capital consists of 1,217,761 ordinary shares of EUR 1 each,

The movements in the period under review can be summarised as follows:

Isswed & paid
up share s:;:‘ :::::M Result Total
capital pre nes

Balance as at 1" April 2024 1,217,761 9,599 262,503 165,924 1,656,187
Appropriation of result . . 165,924 (165.924) -
Result for the period . - - 54,499 54,499
Balanee as at 31 March 2025 1,217,761 9,900 428,427 54,499 1,710,686

_ — CEE— —
Balance as at 1% April 2023 1,217,761 9,999 (36,471) 308,974 1,500,263
Movement during the year . . 308,974 (308,974) -
Dividend paid . . (10.000) - (10,000)
Result for the year - . - 105,924 165924
Balance as at 31" March 2024 1.217.761 9,999 162,503 165,924 1,656,187

Godavari Biorefineries BV,

Hoofddorp, The Netherlands 10 SR ¢
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Notes to the financial statements (continaed...)

6 Revenue

Revenue from sales;
Sales - NL.

Sales - EU

Sales - Non EU
Sales - Others

Revenue from commission:
Commissons = NL
Commissons - EU
Commissons - Nen EU

Cost of goods sold

Goods purchase
Other direct expenses
Purchase- Others

General and administrative expenses

2024-25 2023-24
Euro Euro

5,798,840 4,594,722
45439 14,443
4.837.647 3.038.630
810,594 957,746
- 440,000
5,693,680 4.450,819

49.967 “
31,300 52,527
23893 91,377
105,160 143,904
(5,228,150) (3,652,278)
(48,747) (15,230)
- (404,000)

(5,276.897) ﬂ&?lﬁq

Audit fees (8,944) (6,718)
Conference and seminar (24,727 (2.908)
Contribution and subscriptions (1,593) (3.173)
Commission expense (35,827) {25,846}
[nsurances general (§5,445) (5.445)
Management fees . (10,000)
Office rent (14.878) (13,740)
Other general expenses (4,031) (1,468)
Postage and courier (113) (295)
Professional fees (16,392) (12.470)
Printing and stationary (379) (273)
Rounding oft 46 36
Sponsorship fees (2.200) (3.500)
Telephone and internet costs (3.348) (1,696)
Travel and necomodation (30.569) (20,755)
REACH expenses (9.719) 11,976

‘lSOIIZOI ‘mzzg
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Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

9 Employment costs

Salaries and wages
Socizl security contributions

10 Finance income and costs

Bank charges
Foreign exchange differences
Interest and similar expense

11 Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax expense

12 Board of Directors' remuneration
Current board of directors

2024-25 2023-24
Euro Euro
{265.889) (210,848)
(20,926) (11,414)

(286,815) (222.262)

(2,485) (2.541)
(2,791) (2.258)
(4,450) (5,274)
(9,726) (10,073)
67.282 198,604
(12.784) (32.680)
54,499 165,924
222,675 210,848

222,675 210,848

The directors’ remuneration includes periodically paid remuncration, such gs salaries and holiday allowance.

Godavari Biorefineries B.V
Hoofddorp, The Netherlands



Notes fo the financial statements (continued...)

Average number of employees
During the period three employees are on the payroll (Previous year: 1).

Events after the balance sheet date

No events which may substantially effect the financial position of the Company and which are relevant to
announce in the annual accounts have occurred afier the balance sheet date.

Amsterdam,  15th May 2025

O - Qs

Prajesh Mistry C.W. Faber

Werner Wutscher

Godavari Biorefineries B.V.
Hoofddorp, The Netherlands 13 SR



Other information

Profit appropriation according to the Articles of Association

According to the Articles of Association the annual net profit is at free disposal of the annual shareholders
mecting. Dividends can only be declared with due observance of the company’s articles of association and to
the extent that the company’s capital exceeds the paid in and called up capital, increased by the reserves that
must be maintained in accordance with the law or its articles of association.

Proposed profit appropriation
The profit for the year 2024-25 has been included under result for the period in sharcholder’s cquity, The
result for the year 2023-24 has been appropriated in the retained earnings.

Auditor's report

Based on article 2:396 section 6 of the Dutch Civil Code, the company is exempt from the obligation to have
the annual accounts audited. However, the Company has get its accounts aadited voluntarily.

Godavari Biorefineries B.V,

Hoofddorp. The Netherlands 14 @ SR



R KSR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Godavari Biorefineries Inc.
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Interim Financial Statements of Godavari Biorefineries Inc.
("the Company"), which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period April 1, 2024, to March 31, 2025 and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income) for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We have reviewed the financial statements in accordance with the relevant Auditing and Assurance Standards. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. The use of this auditor’s report is limited for the purpose of the
consolidation of the financial statement by the holding company of The Company and it doesn’t provide further
assurance to external stakeholders of The Company.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated

Reg. Address: WZ-49/20-B, Second Floor, Back Side, Budhela Village, Vikas Puri, New Delhi-110018
Land Line No. +91-1135540801, Email ID - rksrassociates@gmail.com



R KSR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit & loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), of the Company in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the local law for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs), we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We have reviewed the financial statements in accordance with the relevant Auditing and Assurance Standards.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Financial
Statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial
Statements.

Reg. Address: WZ-49/20-B, Second Floor, Back Side, Budhela Village, Vikas Puri, New Delhi-110018
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R KSR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

For R KSR & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 040422N

RAHUL gaebaneie

SINGLA #5550
CA Rahul Singla
Partner

M.no. 569288

UDIN:- 25569288BMHYIU9663
Place :- Delhi
Date :- 21.05.2025
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Balance Sheet asat 31 March 2025

(Before appropriation of results)

Assets

Current assets

Accounts receivables
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income
Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities

Short term liabilities

Accounts payable
Income tax payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Shareholders' equity

Common stock, $100 per value, 5,000 share authorised,

and 1,550 share issued

Retained earnings
Result for the year

Total Liabilities& Shareholders' equity

Godavari Biorefineries Inc.
Delaware, USA

Notes

N

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
$ $
35,450 51,375
39,458 44,485
5,29,590 4,86,689
6,04,498 5,82,548
6,04,498 5,82,548
1,890 1,663
14,379 9,130
4,339 4,367
20,608 15,160
1,55,000 1,55,000
3,92,388 3,89,195
36,502 23,193
5,83,890 5,67,388
6,04,498 5,82,548




Income statement for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025

Revenue
Other income

Gross operating result

General and administrative expenses
Employment costs

Finance income/ (costs)

Operating result

Result befor e taxes

Taxation on result

Result after taxes

Godavari Biorefineries Inc.

Delaware, USA

Notes

Apr'23-Mar'25  Apr'22-Mar'24
$ $

1,68,733 1,54,616
1,68,733 1,54,616
(51,433) (56,092)
(66,418) (66,201)
50,882 32,323
50,882 32,323
(14,379) (9,130)
36,502 23,193




Notesto thefinancial statements

1 Genera

11 Operations

Godavari Biorefineries Inc (the Company) is a bulk and specialty chemica manufacturer subsidiary located in
Philadel phia, PA 19103, USA . The company grants unsecured credit to its customers located throughout the United states
on as limited basis. Godavari Biorefineris Inc. is the step down subsidiary of Cayuga Investment BV (registered under the
law of the Netherlands). The ultimate parent company is Godavari biorefineries Limited located in Mumbai, India

1.2 Changesin accounting policies

There are no change in accounting policies during the period ended 31st March, 2025.

1.3 Related-party transactions

All legal entities that can be controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced are considered to be a related party.
Also, entities which can control the Company are considered as a related party. In addition, statutory directors, other key
management of Godavari Biorefineries Inc. and close relatives are regarded as related parties.

Significant transactions with related parties are disclosed in the notes insofar as they are not transacted under normal
market conditions. The nature, extent and other information is disclosed if thisis required for to provide the true and fair
view.

1.4 Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which is the basis for valuation and determination
of results and assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business.

The equity of the Company amounted to $ 583,890 ( Previous Year $ 567,388).
2 Accounting policiesfor the balance sheet
2.1 General information

In general, assets and liabilities are stated at the amounts at which they were acquired or incurred, or lower realizable
value. If not specifically stated otherwise, they are recognized at the amounts at which they were acquired or incurred. The
balance sheet and income statement include references to the notes.

Godavari Biorefineries Inc.
Delaware, USA 5



Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

2 Accounting policies for the balance sheet (continued...)

2.2 Foreign currencies

Functional currency
The financia statements are presented in USD, which is the functional and presentation currency of Godavari Biorefineries
Inc.

Transactions, receivables and debts
Foreign currency transactions in the reporting period are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the trandlation at year-end exchange rates are recognized in the income statement.

2.3 Furniture and Fixtures

Furniture and fixtures are valued at historical cost, less straight-line depreciation over their estimated useful lives and
impairment |osses.

24 Receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. If payment of the
receivable is postponed under an extended payment deadline, fair value is measured on the basis of the discounted value of
the expected revenues. Interest gains are recognized using the effective interest method. A provision is raised when atrade
receivable is considered uncollectable. It is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances and deposits held at call with maturities of less than 12
months. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet. Cash and cash equivalents
are stated at face value.

Godavari Biorefineries Inc.
Delaware, USA 6



Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

3 Accounting policiesfor theincome statement

3.1 General information

Profit or loss is determined as the difference between the reliazable value of the goods delivered and services rendered, and
the cost and other charges for the year. Revenues on transactions are recognised in the year in which they are realized.

3.2 Revenuerecognition

Revenue is recognized when a company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to
the customers.
All of the Company’s revenue from commissions is recognized in ‘Income from Operations’ on the Income Statement.

3.3 Exchangedifferences
Exchange differences arising upon the settlement or conversion of monetary items are recognised in the income statement
in the period that they arise.

3.4 General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses comprise costs chargeable to the year that are not directly attributable to the cost of
the goods sold.

3.5 Depreciation

Property, plant and egquipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as from the inception of their use. Land and
investment property are not depreciated. Future depreciation and amortisation is adjusted if there is a change in estimated
future useful life.

3.6 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and social security contributions are taken to the income statement based on the terms of employment,
where they are due to employees.

3.7 Financeincome and costs

I nterest paid and received
Interest paid and received is recognized on a time-weighted basis, taking account of the effective interest rate of the assets
and liabilities concerned.

3.8 Incometax expense

Income tax is calculated on the profit/loss before tax in the income statement, taking into account any losses carried
forward from previous financia years and tax-exempt items, and plus non-deductible expenses.

Godavari Biorefineries Inc.
Delaware, USA 7



Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
$ $
1 Accountsreceivables
Receivable from Godavari Biorefineries Ltd 31,110 46,745
Receivable from Godavari Biorefineries B.V. 4,340 4,630
35,450 51,375

All receivables fall duein lessthan one year. The fair value of the receivables approximates the book value.

2 Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income

Security deposits 60 60
Prepaid expenses 2,440 2,267
Advance Tax 36,958 42,158
39,458 44,485
Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid D& O Insurance 1,008 1,008
Prepaid Subscriptions - -
Prepaid Commercial Liability 1,432 1,259
2,440 2,267
Advance Tax
Advance Fed Tax 33,199 39,406
Advance State Tax 3,759 2,752
36,958 42,158
3 Cash and cash equivalents
Chemung Canal- USD 5,29,590 4,86,689
5,29,590 486,689
All bank balances are at the Company's free disposal.
4 Taxespayable
Federal tax payable 9,786 6,207
State income tax payable 4,593 2,923
14,379 9,130

Godavari Biorefineries Inc.
Delaware, USA 8



Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

5 Shareholders equity

The share capital consists of 1,550 common shares of $ 100 each.

The movementsin the period under review can be summarised as follows:

Issued share Result for the Retained
. . Total
capital year earnings

Balanceasat 1 April 2023 1,55,000 1,61,463 2,27,732 5,44,195
Dividend Paid - - - -
Appropriation of result - (1,61,463) 1,61,463 -
Result for the year - 23,193 - 23,193
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,55,000 23,193 3,89,195 5,67,388
Balanceasat 1 April 2024 1,55,000 23,193 3,89,195 5,67,388
Dividend Paid - - (20,000) (20,000)
Appropriation of result - (23,193) 23,193 -
Result for the year - 36,502 - 36,502
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,55,000 36,502 3,92,388 5,83,890

Godavari Biorefineries Inc.
Delaware, USA



Notes to the financial statements (continued...)

Apr'23-Mar'25 Apr'22-Mar'24

$ $
6 Revenue
Commission income 1,68,733 1,54,616
7 General and administrative expenses
Rent expense (3,392) (2,818)
Professional fees (33,353) (31,786)
Insurance expenses (5,975) (5,225)
Bank charges (356) (245)
Dues and subscriptions (586) (1,956)
Office supplies and postage (181) (137)
Advertisement & promotion Expense - -
Telephone & Internet Expense (1,616) (1,113)
Travelling Expense (4,134) (9,351)
Conference expense (1,563) (3,160)
Miscellaneous expenses (278) (301)
(51,433) (56,092)
8 Employment costs
Payroll costs (66,418) (66,201)
(66,418) (66,201)

Employment cost during the year consists of salaries expense of $ 66,418 and payroll taxes of $ 4,931

9 Incometax expense

Profit/(loss) before tax 50,882 32,323
Federal tax expense (9,786) (6,207)
State tax expense (4,593) (2,923)

36,502 23,193
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Supplementary infor mation

Profit appropriation according to the Articles of Association

According to the Articles of Association the annual net profit is at free disposal of the annual shareholders meeting.
Dividends can only be declared with due observance of the company's articles of association and to the extent that the
company's capital exceeds the paid in and called up capital, increased by the reserves that must be maintained in
accordance with the law or its articles of association.

Proposed profit appropriation
The Board of Directors proposes to add the profit for the year to the accumulated result. The profit appropriation is
reflected in these financia statements.

Events occurred after balance date

Since balance sheet date no events occurred, which would change the financial position of the Companyand which would
require adjustments of or disclosure in the annual accounts now presented.

Signed on, May 14, 2025

Arup Mitra, Director, GB Inc

Director Director
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May 14, 

Arup Mitra, Director, GB Inc 


